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OVERVIEW

RHB BANKING GROUP

MALAYSIA

278 Branches/Offices
11,651 Employees

Total Income

RM5.2bittion

SINGAPORE

9 Branches/Offices
708 Employees

Total Income

SGD201.6 miltion

Hong Kong
Myaniigy Lao PDR
Thailand Cambodia
Vietnam
Malaysia Brunei
Singapore
Indonesia

LAO PDR

2 Branches/Offices
45 Employees

HONG KONG/CHINA

3 Branches/Offices
123 Employees

Total Income

HKD112.2 mittion

Total Income

LAK29.2bittion

CAMBODIA

13 Branches/Offices
245 Employees

Total Income

USDZO.9 million

INDONESIA

13 Branches/Offices
361 Employees

Total Income

IDR270.2bittion

pace: 006

THAILAND

13 Branches/Offices
441 Employees

Total Income

THB866.6 mittion

BRUNEI

1 Branch/Office
22 Employees

VIETNAM

Representative Office

Total Income

BND3.6 mittion

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE

MYANMAR

Representative Office

TOGETHER WE PROGRESS



TOTAL ASSETS

MARKET CAPITALISATION
as at 31 December 2016

RHB BANK is the &th largest, fully integrated financial
services group in Malaysia, listed on the Main Board of Bursa
Malaysia. RHB Bank assumed the listing status of RHB Capital
Berhad on 28 June 2016.

on BURSA MALAYSIA

on 28 June 2016

RHB INDOCHINA BANK
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WE provide a comprehensive range of financial services
under our core business pillars.

» Group Retail Banking

» Group Business & Transaction Banking
* Group Wholesale Banking

» Group Shariah Business

* Group Insurance

* Group International Business

+ Malaysia » Cambodia

* Singapore * Vietnam

¢ Indonesia « Myanmar

* Thailand * Lao PDR

* Brunei  Hong Kong/China

race:007



SUMMARY OF FIVE YEAR
GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

RHB BANKING GROUP

TOTAL ASSETS (usp’Million) PROFIT BEFORE TAX (usp’Million)
2016 G 53,791 2016 507
2015 . 51,804 2015 512
2014 @ 49,853 2014 G 622
203 43,430 2013 562
202 @ 42,980 202 542

GROSS LOANS, ADVANCES

AND FINANCING (usp’Million) DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS (usD’Million)
201 I 35,107 2010 IS 378
2015 @ 34,406 2015 @EE 35,945
2014 @ 32,383 2014 @ 35,712
2013 U 27,671 2013 @ 31,305
2012 EEED 25,335 2012 QU 31415

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (usp’Million) NET DIVIDENDS* (usp’Million)
201 ENNEENNNEEEED 492 201 EEID 109
2015 @ 4,015 2015 U 128
2014 QU 4.1 2014 QU 35
2013 EEED 3804 2013 EED %
2012 EUED 3,436 2012 @ 122

Note: 2012 to 2014 are based on RHB Capital Group.
* 2012 to 2014 represent net dividends paid/declared by RHB Capital to its shareholders. Dividend Reinvestment Plans were implemented for these dividends
and the reinvestment rate were 68% (2012), 72% (2013) and 73% (2014) respectively.
2015 represents net dividends declared by RHB Bank to RHB Capital. Net dividends declared by RHB Capital to its shareholders in 2015 was USD83.86 million.
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FIVE YEAR GROUP
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RHB BANKING GROUP

RHB BANK GROUP RHB CAPITAL GROUP
Restated

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012M
OPERATING RESULTS (USD’Million)
Operating profit before allowances 703 578 641 658 576
Profit before taxation 507 511 621 561 542
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank 382 378 463 416 405
KEY BALANCE SHEET DATA (USD’Million)
Total assets 53,791 51,804 49,853 43,430 42,980
Gross loans, advances and financing 35,107 34,406 32,383 27,671 25,335
Total liabilities 37,684 47,783 45,559 39,579 39,494
Deposits from customers 4,942 35,945 35,712 31,305 31,415
Paid-up capital 911 787 585 579 567
Shareholders’ equity 4,942 4,015 4,271 3,804 3,436
Commitments and contingencies 44,855 42,290 30,342 22,780 18,900
SHARE INFORMATION
Dividend per USD1.00 share (cents) 12.00 16.33 6.00 16.30 22.09
Net assets per USD1.00 share (USD) 5.4 5.1 7.3 6.6 6.1
Net tangible assets per USD1.00 share (USD) 4.7 4.2 5.3 4.5 4.0
Basic earnings per USD1.00 share (cents) 43.6 48.4 79.7 72.9 79.0
Share price (USD) 4.71 4.35N? 7.62 7.90 7.69
Market capitalisation (USD’Million) 18,887 17,444N3 19,602 20,121 19,180
FINANCIAL RATIOS (%)
Profitability Ratios
Net return on average equity 8.5 10.0 11.5 11.5 13.4
Net return on average assets 0.7 0.7 1.0 1.0 1.0
Cost-to-income ratio 50.0 58.8 54.7 51.3 47.5
Asset Quality
Gross loans to deposits ratio 93.2 95.7 90.7 88.4 80.6
Gross impaired loans ratio 2.43 1.88 2.03 2.81 2.99
Ordinary Shares
Dividend yield 2.5 3.7\? 0.8 2.1 2.9
Dividend payout ratio 28.6 33.9 7.6 22.6 30.0

N1: Restated to reflect the adoption of MFRS 3.
N2: Share price for RHB Bank in 2015 is based on share swap ratio of 1: 1.3.
N3: Based on enlarged share base of RHB Bank after capital injection in April 2016.
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ASPIRATIONS,
VISION & VALUES

RHB BANKING GROUP

PROFESSIONAL
« Committed
* High level of

proficiency, competency

and reliability

RESPECT
- Courteous
« Humble

INTEGRITY

* Honest

+ Ethical

+ Uphold a high standard
of governance

DYNAMIC

+ Proactive

+ Responsive

+ Forward thinking

EXCELLENCE

- Continuously achieve
high standards of
performance and
service deliverables

pace: 010
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Our Vision by 2020...

TO BE A LEADING ;
MULTINATIONAL RHB’S ASPIRATIONS

FINANCIAL SERVICES ~ ~ Imacuierermes s
G RO u P - Strong Market Leadership in Malaysia

across targeted products and segments

- Regional Powerhouse in ASEAN

+20% profit contribution from International
Operations

- Next Generation Customer Centric Bank
delivering innovative and personalised customer
offerings

- Prominent Employer of Choice
within the region

OUR STRATEGY
STATEMENT

To be a multinational regional financial services provider
that is committed to deliver complete solutions to our clients
through differentiated segment offerings and an ecosystem
that supports a simple, fast and seamless customer
experience, underpinned by our cohesive and inspired
workforce and relationships built with our stakeholders

OUR BRAND PROMISE

Together We Progress

» Being your trusted partner

+ Delivering simple, fast and seamless experiences
» Providing solutions that help achieve your goals
* Nurturing future generations

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR [ 2016 pace:011



BUSINESS
MODEL

RHB BANKING GROUP

RHB has a customer-focused business model that enables us to fulfil our role as a trusted
partner in helping our customers and their businesses prosper. Our Balanced Scorecard
provides us with the framework against which we track the progress we have made in

serving the interests of our stakeholders.

RHB’s business model is designed to meet the needs of different Segments

of customers: individuals with different income levels; companies of any
size and different sectors of activity; private companies and public
institutions. We have structured our business by key pillars focusing on

retail customers, SMEs and corporate clients, respectively. This allows us to

better serve the different segments according to their different needs.

1
1
1
1
1
[}
1
1
]
1
1
1

We offer a diverse range of financial products and services, covering retail
banking, Islamic banking, transaction banking, investment banking, treasury,
stock broking and offshore banking. We also provide non-banking offerings

such as general insurance, unit trust management, asset management,
nominee and custodian services. Our products and services are offered

through our extensive branch network, Relationship Managers and digital
channels.

i BEYOND BANKING

\

RHB has a growing regional presence in ASEAN, with our geographical
footprint spanning 10 countries: Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand, Indonesia,
Cambodia, Lao PDR, Brunei, Hong Kong/China, Vietnam and Myanmar. We
will focus on growing our existing franchise, and continue to explore other
strategic partnerships and expansion into other ASEAN countries.

pace:012
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. GEOGRAPHICAL
DIVERSIFICATION

TOGETHER WE PROGRESS



Provide holistic, innovative and segment-driven offerings in

an efficient, safe and integrated manner

HIGH-PERFORMING TALENT, WITH A POSITIVE WORK CULTURE &
STRONG BRAND VALUES

The RHB brand synthesises the Group’s identity and commitment to become the

customers’ trusted partner in helping them and their businesses prosper, as well as to
attract and retain top talent. RHB’s employees share a positive corporate culture focused
on fulfilling the Group’s purpose and achieving the Group’s aspirations. They are

provided with a professional development journey to help them progress and find
fulfilment in their careers.

HIGH-PERFORMING
TALENT & STRONG
BRAND

STRONG BALANCE SHEET, PRUDENT RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

RHB has a solid capital base consistent with its business model, balance sheet structure,
risk profile, and is well above regulatory requirements. We have put in place a Group
Governance framework that ensures effective governance and oversight on a Group-wide

basis. Robust risk management framework have been established to enable effective risk
management and compliance across all parts of the Group.

STRONG BALANCE
SHEET, PRUDENT RISK
MANAGEMENT

INNOVATION, DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION AND BEST PRACTICES

We have embarked on the “RHB Digital Journey”, to effectively deliver meaningful, high
value-adding interactions and customised services for our customers by leveraging on
digital innovations. Our digital transformation journey will enhance our digital capability
across all processes and distribution channels. This will allow us to serve our customers
better through faster turnaround time. The transformation not only enhances the services

provided to customers but also the Group’s operations, both internal and external: i.e:

how to use data to spur business growth, updating and modernising systems, and
streamlining processes and the organisation as a whole.

pace: 013
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CODE OF ETHICS
AND CONDUCT

RHB BANKING GROUP

“Today, financial services is a complex business. Regulatory requirements, governance
systems and decision-making frameworks are becoming more sophisticated. Making
judgement calls have become an increasingly important part of day-to-day policy and
decision making. In making these judgement calls, the ability to identify and resolve
professional and ethical issues cannot be under-estimated. It is from this perspective that
we need to educate and equip new entrants into the industry with good values, norms

and ethics.”
- Governor Datuk Muhammad Ibrahim’s Remarks at the Opening of
the Global Banking Leaders programme on 28 November 2016

RHB Banking Group as one of the custodians of public funds reiterates the importance of integrity and professional conducts amongst its employees,
especially operating in the financial services industry. The primary principles and ethical standards identified have been translated into its Group
Code of Ethics & Conduct for Employees (“Code of Ethics”) with the objective of serving its stakeholders with the highest standards of confidence,
respect and trust as key constituents in its business operations.

As the organisation grows and advances its operations across ASEAN and Greater China, it is central to continue promoting a constructive and lasting

impression in the minds of everyone with whom it interacts. Professionalism, integrity, confidentiality, conflicts of interest and fairness are ethical
principles embedded in the backbone of its employees’ conduct and day-to-day business activities.

The policies and guidelines enumerated herein are principled on promoting best ethical conduct vis-a-vis the following:

AVOID CONFLICTS OF AVOID MISUSE OF KEEP MATERIAL AVOID MISUSE OF
INTEREST, OR POTENTIAL POSITION BY NON-PUBLIC AND PRICE MATERIAL NON-PUBLIC
CONFLICTS, BETWEEN EMPLOYEES; SENSITIVE AND PRICE SENSITIVE
PERSONAL INTERESTS INFORMATION INFORMATION

AND THE INTERESTS OF CONFIDENTIAL AND RELATING TO

THE GROUP, ITS SECURE; SECURITIES OR OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS OR FINANCIAL

CLIENTS; INSTRUMENTS;

1 2 3 7y

ENSURE COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY PROPERLY CARING FOR AND PROTECTING THE GROUP’S
OF THE RELEVANT RECORDS; PROPERTY AND ASSETS; AND

5 6

PROMPT REPORTING OF ANY KNOWLEDGE OR INFORMATION ABOUT UNETHICAL BUSINESS CONDUCT AND
SUSPECTED COMMISSION OF CRIMES.

race:014 DRIVING SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE - TOGETHER WE PROGRESS



All employees of RHB Banking Group are required to read, understand
and embrace the requirements of the Code of Ethics. Ethics involve
two aspects namely the ability to distinguish right from wrong and the
commitment to do what is right. Dishonesty and defraud are examples
of unethical conducts that go against integrity and ethical principle.

The Code of Ethics is a reference of the standards of professional
conduct which spell out how an employee should behave, based on
moral duties and virtues arising from principles on right and wrong.
As the Company and its Group of Companies involve in multiple
banking and capital market disciplines, specific Code of Conducts are
also established to complement the main Code of Ethics — namely
Code of Ethics & Business for Directors, Code of Conduct for Licensed
Representatives, Code of Conduct for Dealer’s Representatives, Code
of Ethics & Conduct for Share Trading Officers, Code of Ethics &
Guidelines for Business Conduct for Unit Trust Consultant(s) and
Principles to Adopt for Users of Social Media Platforms; all crafted
to support the main Code in promoting top down compliance culture
within the Group.

The Company strongly believes that uncompromised integrity and high
moral/social value will convey a strong corporate image to all its
stakeholders in the pursuit to strengthen its market presence. In this
respect, RHB Banking Group does not condone any wrongdoings or
fraudulent acts engaged by any of its employees.

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR / 20

In other words, the Company promotes shared core values namely
P.R.I.D.E (Professional, Respect, Integrity, Dynamic and Excellent)
amongst its employees as the way of life in performing their duties and
responsibilities morally and respectfully. Each employees is highly
expected to demonstrate these key beliefs in the workplace as esteemed
RHB Banking Group’s employee.

Any reporting on violations of the various Codes will be escalated to
the appropriate channels, namely the grievance channel or the
whistleblowing channel in accordance to the internal Group Code of
Ethics & Conduct and Group Whistle Blower Policy respectively. The
former is a formal channel for employees to express disappointment
over human resource-related matters like unfair treatment and promotion
and hence cascade the grievances to their supervisors/designated
human resource (HR) personnel. On the other hand, the latter is a
process to whistle blow and escalate through official channel over
alleged unethical behaviour or fraudulent activities involving
employee(s) to designated recipients within the organisation.
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CORPORATE
MILESTONES

RHB BANKING GROUP

1913
1990

pace: 016

A 4
— KWONG YIK BANK BERHAD

1913

The Kwong Yik (Selangor)
Banking Corporation, Limited
incorporated and commenced
business on 15 July 1913 at the
Old Market Square.

1938

Moved to the Kwong Yik Bank
Chambers. This remained its base
until the 1960s.

1940’s

Operations suspended with the
Japanese Occupation and World
War 2. The bank resumed business
when the war ended. In 1941,
deposits totaled RM5 million.

1965

The landmark 10-storey
Headquarters at Jalan Bandar (now
Jalan Tun H.S. Lee) was opened by
the Prime Minister then, Tunku
Abdul Rahman on September 10.
Opened branches in Jalan Ipoh and
Jalan Bukit Bintang.

April 1981
Opened a branch in Ipoh, the first
outside Federal Territory and Selangor.

1985

Introduced ATM service called ‘Boss
simultaneously at 12 of its branches in
Kuala Lumpur, Petaling Jaya and

Klang.

1915
Moved from Market Square to the
corner of Jalan Bandar and )alan
Silang where it remained until
1938.

1950’s

Played an integral part in the
rehabilitation of the country’s
economy leading up to
Independence. Links with overseas
banks were established.

1961

Moved to its temporary premises in
Jalan Bandar while awaiting the
completion of its new headquarters.
By this time, customer deposits

totaled RM34 million.

1967

First branch opened in Petaling
Jaya. Both Kuala Lumpur and
Petaling Jaya were rapidly
expanding at this point and many
of the landmark buildings were
financed by Kwong Yik Bank.

1968
Malayan Banking buys 30% of
Kwong Yik Bank’s issued capital.

1987

Joined forces with Malayan
Banking to launch the country’s
first shared ATM service called
the ABC network.

1920’s & 30’s

Extended credit to local traders,
mainly Chinese businessmen,
miners and planters, in a financial
environment largely dominated
by foreign banks. Despite the
economic depression of the
1930’s, Kwong Yik Bank played a
significant role in the growing
prosperity of Malaya and the
demand for rubber and tin.

1963
Kwong Yik Bank celebrated its
Golden Jubilee.

1964
First sub-branch opened in Jalan
Pasar.

1970

Malayan Banking’s shareholding
in the bank increased to 51.15%.
Kwong Yik Bank’s deposits at this
juncture totaled more than RM130
million.

1970
New linear logo unveiled.

1989
Launched the Boss Corporate Card
and its Sunday Banking service.

1990
Mastercard facility launched.

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE - TOGETHER WE PROGRESS
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1993

Kwong Yik Bank celebrated its
80th anniversary. It had 50
branches throughout the country
at this juncture and 1,680 staff.
To mark the occasion, the bank
produced its first TV commercial.

Sime Bank Berhad

1999

Sime Bank merged with RHB
Bank to become part of RHB
Banking Group. Sime Bank was
set up after UMBC (United
Malayan Banking Corporation,
established 1960) became part
of the Sime Darby Group in
1996.

2009

Inception of Easy by RHB, the
first innovative community bank
in Asia that offers fast and
simple banking experience
through cutting-edge technology.

= ing Group
RHB® oy

2013
RHB Banking Group celebrates
RHB Bank’s 100th Anniversary.

AR / 20

1993

Rashid Hussain Bhd purchased
Malayan Banking’s share in Kwong
Yik Bank. The bank then merged
with DCB Bank (formerly D&C Bank,
established 1966), which has been
under the RHB stable since 1993.
This biggest bank merger in the
country’s history formed RHB Bank
Berhad, then Malaysia’s third largest
financial services group.

2003

Merger of RHB Bank with Bank
Utama Berhad, which was first
established in 1976.

2012
RHB Capital acquired OSK
Investment Bank, paving the way
for RHB Banking Group’s strong
presence in ASEAN and Hong
Kong.

28 June 2016

RHB Bank Berhad assumed the
listing status of RHB Capital
Berhad on Bursa Malaysia, thus
becoming the new financial
holding company of RHB Banking
Group.

DCB¢BANK

1997

Launch of RHB Online service for
financial services via computer
and telephone.

2007

The Employees Provident Fund
(EPF) emerged as the single largest
shareholder of RHB Capital. 30%
equity in RHB Bank was purchased
from Khazanah Nasional Berhad,
making RHB Bank a 100%
subsidiary of RHB Capital.

paGe:017
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OVERVIEW

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Cambodia

BRANCHES

¢ BATTAMBANG

¢ SIEM REAP

¢ KAMPONG CHAM

4 PHNOM PENH MAIN OFFICE

— 4 CITY MALL OLYMPIC
— & STOEUNG MEANCHEY
— 4 KBAL THNAL

— & PET LOK SONG

— 4 TOUL KORK
— 4 MAO TSE TUNG
— & BOEUNG KENG KANG

The Branch is located at No. 263, Ground Floor, Ang Doung Street (St.110), Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 23992 833 Fax: (855) 23 991 822

Email : kh.phnompenhmain@rhbgroup.com

Website : www.rhbgroup.com

¢ PREAH SIHANOUK

PHNOM PENH MAIN OFFICE CITY MALL OLYMPIC BRANCH STOEUNG MEANCHEY BRANCH

RHB Indochina Bank Phnom Penh Main Office
is led by Mr. Hourt Ang together with his team
of 27 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 263, Ground
Floor, Ang Doung Street (St.110), Phnom
Penh, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 23 992 833
Fax: (855) 23 991 822

Email: kh.phnompenhmain@rhbgroup.com

pace:020

RHB Indochina Bank City Mall Olympic branch
is led by Mr. Keang Chanveasna together with
his team of 17 staff.

The Branch is located at Lot A3EO, Ground
Floor, City Mall Olympic, Monireth Street,
Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 23 993 568
Fax: (855) 23 993 565

Email: kh.citymall@rhbgroup.com

RHB Indochina Bank Stoeung Meanchey
branch is led by Mr. Chem Sreynonn together
with his team of 12 staff.

The Branch is located at Monireth Street (St. 217)
Corner of Chaksomram Road,
Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 23 969 228
Fax: (855) 23 969 231

Email: kh.stoeungmeanchey@rhbgroup.com
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KBAL THNAL BRANCH PET LOK SONG BRANCH TOUL KORK BRANCH

RHB Indochina Bank Kbal Thnal branch is led
by Mr. Nhim Borey together with his team of
12 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 530A - 5308,
Monivong Blvd. (Junction of Street 271),
Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 23 993 598
Fax: (855) 23 993 593

Email: kh.kbalthnal@rhbgroup.com

RHB Indochina Bank Pet Lok Song branch is
led by Mr. Tieng Sothearo together with his
team of 11 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 1-3, Street 271,
Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 23 969 368
Fax: (855) 23 969 370

Email: kh.petloksong@rhbgroup.com

RHB Indochina Bank Toul Kork branch is led
by Mr. Huot Sovathanak together with his
team of 12 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 18C, Kim IL Sung
(St. 289), Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 23 989 600
Fax: (855) 23 989 606

Email: kh.toulkork@rhbgroup.com

MAO TSE TUNG BRANCH BOEUNG KENG KANG BRANCH SIEM REAP BRANCH

RHB Indochina Bank Mao Tse Tung branch
is led by Mr. Sok Sopheng together with his
team of 11 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 281A, Mao Tse
Tung Blvd., Phnom Penh, Cambodjia.

Tel: (855) 23 989 881
Fax: (855) 23 989 885

Email: kh.maotsetung@rhbgroup.com

RHB Indochina Bank Boeung Keng Kang
branch is led by Ms. Pheng Chanthou together
with his team of 12 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 167, Preah
Norodom Blvd., Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 23 989 188
Fax: (855) 23 989 788

Email: kh.boeungkengkang@rhbgroup.com

RHB Indochina Bank Siem Reap branch is
led by Ms. Kheom Sotheary together with her
team of 11 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 12-14-16, National
Road No. 6, Siem Reap Province, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 63 969 811
Fax: (855) 63 969 816

Email: kh.siemreap@rhbgroup.com

PREAH STHANOUK BRANCH BATTAMBANG BRANCH KAMPONG CHAM BRANCH

RHB Indochina Bank Preah Sihanouk branch
is led by Mr. Chhim Chanphearom together
with his team of 10 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 129, Street 7
Makara, Preah Sihanouk Province, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 34 934 811
Fax: (855) 34 934 816

Email: kh.sihanoukville@rhbgroup.com

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR / 20

RHB Indochina Bank Battambang branch is
led by Mr. Ean Channa together with his team
of 10 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 1-3-5-7, Street
No. 3, Battambang Province, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 53 952 811
Fax: (855) 53 952 966

Email: kh.battambang@rhbgroup.com

RHB Indochina Bank Kampong Cham branch
is led by Mr. Yen Chhayvat together with his
team of 9 staff.

The Branch is located at No. 41, National Road
No. 7, Kampong Cham Province, Cambodia.

Tel: (855) 42 942 811
Fax: (855) 42 942 899

Email: kh.kampongcham@rhbgroup.com
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2016 KEY
HIGHLIGHTS

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

USD20.9 USDS8.4
million million

TOTAL ASSETS GROSS LOANS

Qe
iy

UsSD297.3 USD528.6
million million
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SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

UsD84.4
million

Phnom Penh
Kampong Cham
Battambang
Siem Reap
Preah Sihanouk

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR / 20

12 branches

15T TO INTRODUCE
CASH DEPOSIT &
CHECK DEPOSIT MACHINE

IN CAMBODIA
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SUMMARY OF FIVE YEAR
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

TOTAL ASSETS (usp) PROFIT BEFORE TAX (usp)
2016 QU 622,894,516 2016 QU 8425018
2015 U 563,943,753 2015 @I 8,008,106
2014 @D 349,086,028 2014 @UI 7,018,575
2003 (D 242,126,972 2013 @D 983,892
020D 159,340,990 02 @D 1,169,692

PROFIT AFTER TAX (usp) LOANS AND ADVANCES (usb)
2016 Y 6,697,407 2016 347,575,673
01 5,870,823 201 338,622,585
2014 U 5,454,706 2004 @D 213,613,796
03¢ 861,477 030 139,716,334
o 1,092,237 0120 O 88,953,800

TOTAL DEPOSITS (usp) CUSTOMER DEPOSITS (usp)
2016 QD 528,639,004 201 U 297,271,520
2015 (U 478,738,832 2015 @ 216,199,505
2014 @D 286,201,796 2014 U 138,791,735
2013 @D 188,319,121 2013 @D 84,550,674
012 106,293,935 oR2CT 83,509,351
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OPERATING RESULTS (USD)
Profit before tax

Profit after tax

KEY BALANCE SHEET DATA (USD)
Total assets

Loans and advances

Total liabilities

Deposits from customers

Total deposits

Paid-up capital

Shareholder’s equity

FINANCIAL RATIOS (%)

Non-performing loans to total loans and advances
Net return on assets

Net return on equity

Loans/Customer Deposit Ratio

Loans/Deposit Ratio

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR / 20

2016

8,425,018
6,697,407

622,894,516
347,575,673
538,447,847
297,271,520
528,639,004
67,000,000
84,446,669

2.47
1.08
7.93
116.92
65.75

2015

8,008,106
5,870,823

563,943,753
338,622,585
486,194,491
216,199,505
478,738,832
67,000,000

77,749,262

0.87
1.04
7.55
156.88
70.85

2014

7,018,575
5,454,706

349,086,028
213,613,796
292,207,589
138,791,735
286,201,796
52,000,000
56,878,439

0.49
1.56
9.59
155.79
75.55

FIVE YEAR
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Year Ended 31 December

2013

8,425,018
861,477

242,126,972
139,716,334
190,703,239
84,550,674
188,319,121
52,000,000
51,423,733

3.01
0.36
1.68
169.29
76.01

2012

8,425,018
1,092,237

159,340,990
88,953,800
108,778,735
83,509,351
106,293,935
52,000,000
50,562,255

0.69
2.16
107.60
84.53
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DELIVERING SOLUTIONS ‘



We are committed to building and maintaining long-term
relationships with our customers and the community at
large through sound banking practices, innovative

products and services, and excellent service delivery.




DELIVERING SOLUTIONS

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

DEPOSITS

RHB Savings Account

We help you grow your family’s
finances which come with 24-hour
banking convenience.

RHB Savings Account opens the
way to save for your dream home,

your car, your child’s education or
even a computer.

REMITTANCE

RHB Telegraphic Money Transfer

Transfer and receive your money with ease.

RHB Remittance helps you move your money
around the world with speed and efficiency,

RHB Fixed Deposits
Simple way to build your savings.

RHB Fixed Deposits Account, with
many value added features, is an
effective investment product.

RHB Banker’s Cheque

including services through Western Union.

paGE: 028

A reliable payment instrument.

RHB Banker’s Cheque is as good as Cash and
you will have no problem making payment.

RHB Current Account

The banking products at your finger
tips.

RHB Current Account is a powerful
cash management tool as it can
save you trips to the bank to pay
those hills and expenses.

RHB Escrow Account

A trusted partner to complete your
transactions.

RHB Escrow Account will assure
your interest is protected with us
when you are conducting a major
deal.

RHB Money Exchange

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE

We offer competitive exchange rate for Forex.

RHB Money Exchange buy or sell foreign
currencies with the best rate in town.

TOGETHER WE PROGRESS



PERSONAL FINANCING

RHB Home Loan

We help you own your dream home.

RHB Home Loan, with many value-added
features and flexible options, is key to quickly

owning your dream home.

RHB Personal Loan

Get what you have always desired now.

RHB Personal Loans are helpful in giving you
the cash to enjoy life’s opportunities. With

RHB Car Loan

flexible options, you will have what it takes to
get a computer, to renovate your home, or to

make an investment.

BUSINESS AND CORPORATE FINANCING & SERVICES

RHB Property Loan

We help you invest in the property
you want.

RHB Property Loan, helps you own
the property either for your own
business use or for investment
purposes.
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RHB Working Capital

Let us help you attain healthy
cashflow.

RHB Working Capital Loans, will
enable you to achieve healthy
cashflow for you to run your
business with ease of mind.

RHB Trade Financing

Comprehensive range of Import &
Export financing facilities.

RHB Trade Financing facilities help
you in your import and export
needs; take the burden and worry
of non-delivery of goods away from
you.

Drive your dream today.

RHB Car Loan, with flexible options, can put
you in the driving seat you have always wanted.

RHB Corporate & Equity

Your business needs are our priority.

From listing your company to
business merger and acquisition,
you can be rest assured that you
can count on us.
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ORGANISATION CHART

RHB INDOCHINA BANK
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“RHB INDOCHINA BANK LIMITED
(“THE BANK”) IS PROUD TO PRESENT
TO YOU THE INFORMATION FROM
THE 9TH ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS”

RHB Indochina Bank Limited (“the Bank”) is
proud to present to you the information from the
9th Annual Report and Financial Statements. 2016
was another year the Bank continued to deliver
record high profitability and sustainable growth,
despite the global economy slowdown’s effect on
depressing commodity prices, the uncertainty
surrounding the U.S. presidential elections, the
U.K.’s BREXIT vote, slower trade in advanced
countries and the slowdown in China. In 2016, the
National Bank of Cambodia took initiatives to
introduce new regulatory requirements including
the Liquidity Coverage Ratio and a higher Minimum
Capital Requirement, to ensure the Kingdom’s
Banking Sector is more resilient to the global
economic headwinds, and to be on par with
international standard requirements.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Assets grew 10%, or USD59 million, from
USD564 million in 2015 to USD623 million in
2016, improving the Bank’s ranking among
banks in Cambodia from 12th in 2015 to 11th in
2016 in terms of assets. The Bank is making
good progress in its aspiration to be among the
top 10 banks in terms of assets, notwithstanding
the competitive landscape.

The Bank also delivered very strong 37% growth
in terms of Customer Deposits, which is 1.8
times the industry Deposits growth rate of 21%.
This contributed to the increase in the Customer
Deposit market share of the Bank, and demonstrated
the confidence that Cambodian depositors
place in the Bank, and a clear recognition of the
Bank’s ability to meet and exceed customer
demands.
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Profit Before Tax grew to USD8.4 million in
2016, a USDO.4 million increase over the
previous year. Profit Before Tax for the last 5
years recorded a compound annual growth rate
(CAGR) of 115%, while Customer Deposits
recorded 51% CAGR, Loans a 46% CAGR, and
Assets a 43% CAGR.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

RHB Indochina Bank is committed in upholding
the highest standards in governance, compliance
and prudent risk management. RHB Indochina
Bank continues to maintain and enhance the
best corporate governance practices within the
RHB Banking Group, which have developed and
expanded over the Group’s more than 100 year
history.

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE -

RHB Indochina Bank’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio
was recorded at 90.1% as at end of 2016 which
is 1.5 times above the requirement of 60% set
by National bank of Cambodia in 2016.

Another new requirement set by National Bank
of Cambodia is the New Minimum Capital
Requirement of USD75 million by March 2018.
The Bank is in compliance after increasing its
Share Capital to USD71 million on March 2017
and it is confident to meet the Central Bank’s
requirement by March 2018. The Bank had fully
complied with all Cambodian regulatory
requirements, which in 2016 included numerous
more new or revised requirements set by the
National Bank of Cambodia, and shall continue
to do so diligently going forward.

TOGETHER WE PROGRESS



On top of that, the Risk Management Committee
and Audit Committee met four times each over
the year to review and oversee all risk and
compliance matters, as well as internal
controls. In this respect, further details are
provided in the “Internal Control Report” in the
Bank’s Annual Report 2016.

For the third consecutive year, the Bank organised
the RHB Junior Foothall Cup, which allows under-
privileged children in Phnom Penh to develop their
interest in sports, and nurture young football
talent. The Bank takes great pride seeing the
growing interest in the participation each year,
and has plans to bring this to the national level in
2017. Besides football, RHB Indochina Bank also
sponsored the Cambodian national cycling team to
participate in national and international cycling
events, and also sponsored the 2016 Cambodia
Mountain Bike Series, another healthy activity the
Bank is actively promoting in Cambodjia.

Through Aide-et-Action, an organisation that
promotes access to quality education, the Bank
built a preschool in Sa Ang Phnom Commune,
Kandal Province, under “The Early Childhood
Development School Program,” that can house 30
pre-schooler students, and provided supplies to
further improve the access to education for the
students. In addition, a cash donation was made to
the largest humanitarian organisation in Cambodia,
the Cambodian Red Cross.

While the Bank continues to grow business, CSR
activities remain a serious focus, and the Bank will
continue to pursue meaningful activities that will
benefit The Cambodian society.
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PROFIT AFTER TAX
M

MILLION

SHAREHOLDER’S

$ EQUITY

USD6.7
-

USD84.4

MILLION

TOTAL ASSETS

7

MILLION

We would like to welcome the new Board of
Directors of RHB Indochina Bank and to express
our deepest gratitude to Tuan Haji Khairuddin
Ahmad, Mr. Foo San Kan, Mr. Leong Yeng Kit, Mr.
Choong Tuck Onn and Mr. U Chen Hock for their
invaluable contribution towards the Bank’s
development over the last few years. As they retire
from their positions on the Bank’s Board of
Directors in 2016, and embark on their new
journeys, the new Board members are committed
to build upon the legacy they have inherited, and
take the Bank to new heights.

The Bank, through RHB Bank, met its March 2017
new Capital Requirement and expects to meet its
new Capital Requirement set by the National Bank
of Cambodia by March 2018. Plans are already in
place to strategically use the available capital to
further optimise profitability.

The Bank will continue to find room to grow and
expand in Cambodia, despite the challenging
environment and increasing competition. We
expect to see new competitors entering the
banking sector in Cambodia, particularly with top
banks across the ASEAN region actively pursuing
regional expansion plans.

USD622.9

The Bank also anticipates increase in costs
associated with compliance, as new regulations
and laws concerning the banking sector are
expected to be introduced in 2017, while we
welcome the official efforts to promote the
financial health and sustainability of the sector.
The Bank is ever-ready to face these new
challenges, and transform them into opportunities
for growth.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to
express our deepest gratitude, in particular to the
National Bank of Cambodia, to our valued
customers, and to Management and our dedicated
staff. All have contributed towards making the
Bank’s aspirations throughout the year a marked
success. We will continue to meet your needs, and
your evolving demands. As our Brand Promise
states, “Together We Progress.”

ONG SENG PHEOW

Chairman
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PROFILES OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

ONG SENG PHEOW

Independent Non-Executive Chairman
Aged 68, Male, Malaysian

> Audit Committee (Member)
Risk Management Committee (Member)
> Remuneration and Nomination Committee (Member)

A\

Board of Director of RHB Insurance Berhad (Chairman)
Board Audit Committee (Member)

Board Nominating & Remuneration Committee (Member)
Board Technology Committee (Member)

Investment Committee of RHB Insurance Berhad (Member)

Y Y VY VYY

A\

Member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants

Ong Seng Pheow has over 34 years of audit and accounting experience. He was
a partner of Ernst & Young from 1984 to 2003. His last held position in Ernst &
Young was as the National Director of Assurance and Advisory Business
Services. He also served on committees and working groups of MICPA.
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ABDUL AZIZ PERU MOHAMED

Independent Non-Executive Director
Aged 68, Male, Malaysian

> Risk Management Committee (Chairman)
Audit Committee (Member)
> Remuneration and Nomination Committee (Member)

A\

> Board Credit Committee (Member)

> Harvard Business School
Pacific Bankers Rim programmes in the United States of America

A\

Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed is currently the Chief Executive Officer/Director
of As-Salihin Trustee Berhad, a trust company specialising in Islamic
estate planning. He held various senior management positions in the
banking industry with almost 30 years in an accomplished career track
spanning management of branch network and retail banking. He spent
most of his working years at Malayan Banking Berhad, where his last
position was General Manager, Consumer Banking Division. He was also
formerly the Senior General Manager of AmBank Berhad from 2002 to
2005. During the years in the banking industry, he was appointed as
Chairman of the Rules Committee of the Association of Banks of Malaysia
and has held several other key positions including as a Board Member of
Mayban Property Trust and Mayban Trustees Bhd.
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CHULAPONG YUKATE

Independent Non-Executive Director
Aged 60, Male, Thai

> Audit Committee (Chairman)
Remuneration & Nomination Committee (Chairman)
> Risk Management Committee (Member)

A\

> Master of Laws from University of Washington, United States
(under Deacons’ Scholarship)

> Graduate Certificate in the International Trade Law from University
of Tokyo, Japan (under the scholarship from the then Ministry of
International Trade and Industry of Japan)

> Bachelor of Laws degree from Chulalongkorn University, Thailand

Lawyers’ Council of Thailand

> Legal Services Board of State of Victoria, Australia

Y

Chulapong brings extensive knowledge to the firm as he has been in the
private practice for 30 years, with major areas of practice including M & A,
Projects, Insurance and International Arbitration. He was a Partner and Of
Counsel in leading international law firms of Deacons in Thailand and
Australia, Colin Ng & Partners in Singapore and Baker & McKenzie in Thailand.
He later joined Dhipaya Insurance Public Company Limited in Bangkok as a
Group General Counsel until July 2013. He was also a Funding and Managing
Partner of DLA Piper's Bangkok office, where it started with 2 lawyers in 2003
and 3 years later, they had successfully built up the office to have 25 lawyers.
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DATO’ KHAIRUSSALEH RAMLI

Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
Aged 49, Male, Malaysian

> Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from Washington

University, St. Louis

> Advanced Management Programme, Harvard Business School
> Fellow Chartered Banker, Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers

Dato’ Khairussaleh Ramli has more than 20 years of experience in the financial
services and capital markets industry, where he has held senior positions in
well-established regional financial institutions. He is also a Council member of
The Association of Banks in Malaysia and Asian Institute of Chartered Bankers.

His knowledge and experience earned him the “Best CFO in Malaysia Award”

in 2010 and 2011 from Finance Asia and the “Best CFO in Malaysia Award” in
2012 from Alpha Southeast Asia.
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RHB INDOCHINA BANK

CHRISTOPHER LOH MENG HENG

Non-independent Non-executive Director
Aged 40, Male, Singaporean

> B.Eng (Hons.) in Engineering, Business Minor,
Nanyang Technological University (NTU), Singapore
> RHB-INSEAD Senior Leadership Programme

Christopher Loh Meng Heng has over 16 years of industry and consulting
experience in financial services and risk management across Asia-Pacific,
United States and the United Kingdom. Extensive experience working with
regional and global financial institutions to transform their business and risk
capabilities.

His experience includes business strategy and transformation, risk management,
operating model design, operational efficiency, risk and regulatory compliance
and capital management. Partner and Managing Director at a global management
consulting firm, where he built and helmed a successful risk management
practice.
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LIM LOONG SENG

Managing Director / Country Head, Cambodia
Aged 62, Male, Malaysian

> MBA in International Business from University of Sunderland

(United Kingdom)

> Bachelor of Science in Agribusiness & Diploma in Agriculture

both from University Putra Malaysia

Lim Loong Seng has more than 38 years working experience including more
than 34 years in the financial services industry which almost 9 years is in
Cambodia. He started his career in banking with a leading Malaysian
financial service group. He has wide ranging exposure and experience in
corporate, business and consumer banking at senior positions covering
operations, credit, risk and sales & marketing.

He was the winner of the SEARCA Gold Medal and Harvard Business Alumni
Club Malaysia Gold Medal when he graduated with a Bachelor of Science in
Agribusiness in 1986.

He also sits on the Board of RHB Indochina Securities Co., Ltd. and RHB
Bank (Laos) Ltd. He also oversees RHB’s Chief Representative in Vietnam
and Myanmar.

He is a Licensed Dealer approved by the Securities Exchange Commission
of Cambodia. He has also been elected as the Vice President of the Malaysian
Business Council of Cambodia since 2010.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS &
BOARD COMMITTEE

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

1. Mr. Ong Seng Pheow

2. Mr. Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed
3 Dato’ Khairussaleh Ramli

4. Mr. Christopher Loh Meng Heng
5. Mr. Chulapong Yukate

6. Mr. Lim Loong Seng

7o Tuan Haji Khairuddin Ahmad
8. Mr. Foo San Kan

9. Mr. Leong Yeng Kit

10. Mr. Choong Tuck Oon

11. Mr. U Chen Hock

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Independent Non-executive Chairman (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
Independent Non-executive Director (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
Non-independent Non-executive Director (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
Non-independent Non-executive Director (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
Independent Non-executive Director

Managing Director/Country Head, Cambodia

Independent Non-executive Director (Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
Independent Non-executive Director (Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
Independent Non-executive Director (Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
Independent Non-executive Director (Resigned as at 27 January 2016)

Non-independent Non-executive Director (Resigned as at 27 January 2016)

Mr. Chulapong Yukate

Mr. Ong Seng Pheow

Mr. Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed
. Foo San Kan

Mr. Leong Yeng Kit

Mr. Choong Tuck Oon

o r W e
=
=

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Chairman

Member (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
Member (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
(Resigned as at 27 January 2016)

Mr. Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed
Mr. Chulapong Yukate

Mr. Ong Seng Pheow

Tuan Haji Khairuddin Ahmad
Mr. Foo San Kan

Mr. Choong Tuck Oon

o r W e

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION C

Mr. Chulapong Yukate

Mr. Ong Seng Pheow

Mr. Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed
Tuan Haji Khairuddin Ahmad
Mr. Leong Yeng Kit

Mr. Choong Tuck Oon

o v oE W
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Chairman (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
Member

Member (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)

(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)

(Resigned as at 27 January 2016)

OMMITTEE

Chairman

Member (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
Member (Appointed as at 20 December 2016)
(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
(Resigned as at 27 January 2016)
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Cambodia has witnessed tremendous growth in its Financial Services
Industry for the last decade. With four new specialised banks, at least 15
new Microfinance Institutions and credit operators and one new commercial
bank in 2016 alone, and several more new commercial banks and other
Financial Institutions expected to join the ranks in Cambodia in 2017, RHB
Indochina Bank (“the Bank”) anticipates the keen challenges we have
faced so far will only get tougher. Some of these banks have embarked on
very aggressive price undercutting vis-a-vis deposit rates resulting in
severe margin compression. These new foreign entrants are mostly from
the largest Financial Services Group in their home country which has excessive
liquidity in their home market. Although competition has grown more
intense, the Bank has captured higher market share and moved up its ranking

in 2016 among the 38 commercial banks in Cambodia.

The Bank has delivered some notable financial
achievements in 2016, namely impressive
growth in Customer Deposits, lower Loans to
Deposits Ratio and reduced Cost to Income
Ratio. Customer Deposits grew 37% or USD81
million, resulting in lower Loans to Deposits
Ratio of 120%, a 39% drop compared to 2015.
The significant growth in Current and Saving
deposits of 68% has effectively lower the Cost
to Income Ratio to an all-time low of 35.5%,
from 39.2% in 2015.

The Bank recorded Total Income of USD20.9
million, and Profit Before Tax at USD8.4
million, which represents a growth rate of 17%
and 5% respectively for the year ending 31
December 2016. The Bank's Total Assets grew
10% to USD623 million and Loans grew 6% to
USD362 million. Loans growth for 2016 was
affected by cut throat pricing especially by
some foreign banks resulting in attrition as well
as pressure on asset quality in the whole industry
which has spiked up from 2.0% in 2015 t0 2.4%
in 2016. Proactive measures by NBC to cool
down excessive credit growth have also
resulted in more cautious credit extensions.

In 2016, new Loans had come from major
sectors like Wholesale & Retail Trade and
Tourism which contributed positively to
Cambodia’s economic growth. The Bank also
focused on driving the Home Ownership
Program by encouraging and helping Cambodians
to own their dream home.

pace:042

RHB Indochina Bank opened two new branches
in 2016 bringing the network to 12, thereby
expanding the Bank’s reach nationwide. These
two new branches are within the city of Phnom
Penh with Mao Tse Tung Boulevard branch
opened in April and Boeung Keng Kang branch
in August. Similar to the 10 existing branches,
they offer the full range of customer centric
services and products to clients. The Bank’s
ATM network also expanded from 12 offsite ATMs
to 15 offsite ATMs which complemented the 18
in-branch ATMs, thus further enhancing customer
convenience.

Financial reporting requirements in Cambodia
became more stringent in 2016, with regulators
moving towards the Third Basel Accord (Basel
I1I), International Financial Accounting Standard
(IFRS), Anti Money Laundering (AML) and Foreign
Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA), with the
aim of strengthening the regulation, supervision
and risk management of the banking sector in the
country. Such measures augur well for the health,
strength and stability of the financial market as
well as the economic wellbeing of Cambodia.

The Bank places the highest priority in corporate
governance, making sure all requirements are
met and all internal policies and processes are
adhered to at all times. Good corporate governance,
a high level of compliance, and prudent risk
management are core parts of the RHB Banking
Group culture.

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE

MAINTAINABLE
OPERATING PROFIT

24.7%

GROWTH

(€

CASA

68.3%

GROWTH

K

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) remains
central to the Bank’s relationship with Cambodian
society amidst the Bank relentless pursuit of
business performance and growth. The Bank
has undertaken numerous CSR programs over
the years which have brought impactful benefits
to Cambodians. In 2016, The Bank collaborated
with NGO Aide-et-Action under the “The Early
Childhood Development School Program” to
build a preschool that can house 30 students in
Sa Ang Commune, Kandal Province, a rural and
under-served community. The smile and expectation
RHB brought to these children, their parents
and the villagers was indeed heart-warming and
satisfying.

TOGETHER WE PROGRESS



The Bank shall continue to monitor and improve
the school going forward to ensure that the
facilities provided will be made full use by the
community.

The Bank also took very keen interest in the
development of sports in the country. We continued
our annual and successful “RHB Cambodia Junior
Football Cup,” where the number of young
participants increased from 176 to 264 participants.
The response was indeed overwhelming and RHB
look forward to some of these footballers graduating
to representing Cambodia in international events.
RHB is also one of the major sponsors for the
Cambodian national riders and actively help
promotes the Cambodia Mountain Bike Series
which has popularized cycling and enable more
Cambodians to engage in healthy activities.

Going forward, the Bank will be focusing on
several Key Priorities to steer the Bank towards
fulfilling our aspiration to be a leading bank in
Cambodia.
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We will continue to support sustainable economic
sectors which will contribute to Cambodia’s
economic growth. It is also the Bank’s intention to
build a well-balanced portfolio in Retail, Business
and Corporate sectors going forward in 2017.

With the environment becoming more challenging,
there is a need for the Bank to manage margin
compression to improve profitability as well as
better manage asset quality to reduce loan
charges. The Bank has put in place a productivity
improvement process and cost management
initiatives to ensure the optimisation of operation
costs.

The Bank is committed to delivering better service
quality, and a friendlier and more personalised
banking experience through our Customer Experience
Enhancement Program. The number of products
and services offered will increase in 2017 to
provide a more holistic banking experience for
customers with various needs and demands.

The Bank has begun to develop multiple channels
of digitalised banking services for customer
convenience including mobile, online banking and
other payment solutions. RHB Indochina Bank
would like to be at the forefront in introducing
cutting-edge digital banking technology to Cambodia.

o COST TO INCOME
RATIO

35.5%

The Bank will continue to invest in human capital
development and instil our positive corporate
culture towards attaining high performance
culture. The Bank’s staff cumulatively completed
4,855 training hours in 2016 and we are committed
to grow this in 2017. We believe that human
capital and skill set of our staff are critical in our
pursuit of growth and success in the years to come

With more infrastructure investment in roads,
bridges and power generations, diversification
of manufacturing from garment and footwear to
electronic and assembly, encouraging growth in
tourism and annual GDP for Cambodia projected
to remain at approximately 7% coupled with the
attention the country is receiving in terms of
foreign direct investment especially from
ASEAN and neighbouring countries, there is ample
space for growth in Cambodia. Notwithstanding
the strong growth potential, several challenges
including keen competition, margin compression
and pressure on asset quality are something the
Bank is constantly on the lookout for.

Most important of all, we would like to express
our utmost appreciation to our valued clients
who have given us their strong support during
our nine year journey in Cambodia. Through our
brand promise “Together We Progress,” we will
continue to do our best to ensure our customers’
banking needs are met. We would also like to
extend our gratitude to the National Bank of
Cambodia for the guidance and support they
have given to us. I would also like to thank the
Board of Directors for their valued leadership
and stewardship and our staff for their commitment
and contribution. Thank you!

LIM LOONG SENG

Managing Director/Country Head, Cambodia
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Mr. Lim has more than 38 years working experience including more
than 34 years in the financial services industry which almost 9
years is in Cambodia. He started his career in banking with a
leading Malaysian financial service group. He has wide ranging
exposure and experience in corporate, business and consumer
banking at senior positions covering operations, credit, risk and
sales & marketing.

He was the winner of the SEARCA Gold Medal and Harvard Business
Alumni Club Malaysia Gold Medal when he graduated with a
Bachelor of Science in Agribusiness in 1986.
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He also sits on the Board of RHB Indochina Securities Co., Ltd. and
RHB Bank (Laos) Ltd. He also oversees RHB’s Chief Representative
in Vietnam and Myanmar.

He is a Licensed Dealer approved by the Securities Exchange
Commission of Cambodia. He has also been elected as the Vice
President of the Malaysian Business Council of Cambodia since
2010.

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE
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Mr. Simon has been with RHB Indochina Bank Limited since its inception in
September 2008 and is currently the Head of Banking Services and Support He
was with a top financial institution in Malaysia for over 28 years where he rose
through the ranks, and gained wide ranging exposure in Banking Operations
and Support. He has spearheaded business and technical banking process
improvement initiatives as well as research and development. His last position
prior to joining RHB was Head of Project Implementation & Process
Improvement, Business Processes & Procedures.

Mr. Simon graduated with an Ontario Secondary School Honors Graduation
Diploma in 1981 and went on to attend York University in Ontario, Canada.

Mr. Yong joined RHB Indochina Bank Limited since November 2010 and is
currently the Head of Credit Management. He has a total of 31 years of
experience in banking and two years in Administration and as Training
Consultant. He has a wide range of exposure and experience in commercial
banking having served at both branch and head office levels in Credit,
Operations, Loan Recovery, Business Development and Training. He graduated
from Greenwich University, USA with a Masters of Business Administration in
2002.

He also achieved his Certified Financial Planner accreditation from Financial
Planner Association of Malaysia (FPAM) in 2006.
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PROFILES OF THE
MANAGEMENT TEAM continueny

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Mr. Chua joined RHB Indochina Bank Limited in May 2014 as the Head of
Finance & Strategy. He has more than 15 years experience in the finance field
with a leading bank in Malaysia and other renowned multinational corporations.
He has vast exposure and experience in auditing, budgeting, financial
management, financial reporting, taxation and business planning.

He graduated from Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) from
United Kingdom. He also holds a Master of Business Administration awarded
by University of Melbourne, Australia.

Mr. Yussof is the Head of Human Resource & Training of RHBIBL. He graduated
from Shefield Hallam University with a Bachelor of Laws in 1996. He joined
RHBIBL since May 2015. Prior to that he was with RHB Bank since June 2012
and was the Human Resource Business Partner for Group Retail Distribution.
His experience in human resources management includes exposure in
recruitment, HR operations, compensation & beneits administration, HR policy
and procedures, performance management, employee engagement, industrial
and employee relations.
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Mr. Rizal joined RHB Indochina Bank Limited on secondment from RHB Bank
Berhad in July 2014. He has 21 years of working experience in banking and
insurance industries. He has gained exposure and experience in Audit, Sales &
Marketing, Bancassurance and International Banking Operations.

Mr. Rizal graduated from University of Northumbria at Newcastle in United
Kingdom with a Bachelor of Accounting in 1996.

Mr. Samnang is the Head of Compliance and Risk Management since January
2010. He has 13 years of experience in Consultanting and Audit. He has wide
ranging exposure in Audit and Compliance at KPMG Cambodia and at Internal
Audit Department of Ministry of Economy and Finance where his last held
position was as a Consultant. He graduated from Maharishi Vedic University,
with a Bachelor of Business Administration in 2004.

He also achieved Certificate of Certified Accounting Technician (CAT) from the
United Kingdom in 2007 and is currently pursuing certificate in Financial Risk
Management from the Global Association of Risk Professional in the United
States of America.
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PROFILES OF THE
MANAGEMENT TEAM continueny

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Mr. Sareth is the Head of Internal Audit. He joined the Bank in July 2009. He
has 14 years of working experience with two years as accounting teacher and
four years as external auditor. He has experience in Compliance and Advisory
Audit on various industries such as Banking, Microfinance Institution, Insurance,
Garment Factories, Restaurant and Service Companies during his time in KPMG
Cambodia. Mr. Sareth holds a Master of Commerce in Finance from International
Institute of Cambodia in 2006.

He also holds a Certificate of Certified Accounting Technician (CAT) in 2008
and is currently pursuing an Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) from the United Kingdom.

Mr. Tithya is currently the Head of Information Technology Department since
joining the Bank in January 2013. He has 13 years of experience in Information
Communication and Technology with wide ranging exposure in IT System. He
manages the IT Operations and oversees the IT infrastructure to support roll
out of the Bank’s delivery channels and products and services for the business
units. He graduated from University Teknology Petronas in Malaysia with a
degree in Bachelor of Technology in 2007.
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MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

1. Mr. Lim Loong Seng Chairman
2. Mr. Cheong Kim Soon Member
B Mr. Chua Thiam Yew Member
4. Mr. Yong Ching San Member
5. Mr. Mohamad Yussof Ahmad Sapari Member
6. Mr. Aldrian Rizal Zahari Member
7. Mr. Meung Samnang Member

CREDIT LENDING COMMITTEE

1. Mr. Christopher Loh Meng Heng Chairman
2. Mr. Lim Loong Seng Member
3. Mr. Cheong Kim Soon Member
4. Mr. Yong Ching San Member
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CALENDAR
OF EVENTS 2016

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

e 8 January 2016 - Startupbootcamp FinTech in collaboration with
RHB Banking Group held a two day events in Phnom Penh focused
on introducing Financial Technology, or FinTech, to entrepreneurs
and finance professionals. This is part of a 16-stop tour across Asia
Pacific to offer expert advice, exposure to innovative early-stage
companies and develop the startup ecosystem in FinTech. The
Office Hours and FinTech Social events are bite-sized glimpses of
the Startupbootcamp FinTech program’s value. Promising teams
across the region will be invited to apply to the accelerator
program. Startupbootcamp FinTech will select 10 startups to take
part in their three month intensive 2016 FinTech accelerator in
Singapore starting in April 2016.
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9 January 2016 [ Budget & Strategic Business Plan 2016

10 January 2016

18 March 2016 RHB Indochina Bank Opens its 11th Branch (Mao Tse Tung Branch)
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CALENDAR
OF EVENTS 2016 (CONTINUED)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

22 March 2016 | Seminar 2016 “Grow Your Business Digitally”

4 June 2016 RHB Cambodia Junior Football Cup 2016

12 June 2016 The 6th Phnom Penh International Half Marathon
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15 July 2016 RHB Indochina Bank Opens its 12th Branch (Boeung Keng Kang Branch)

16 July 2016 Mid Year Review of Strategic Business Plan 2016

19 July 2016 | RHB Family Day 2016
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CALENDAR
OF EVENTS 2016 (CONTINUED)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

23 July 2016 Raya Celebration 2016

31 July 2016 Cambodia Mountain Bike Series 2016

11 August 2016 | 3rd RHB Indochina Bank Board of Directors Meeting
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11 August 2016 J Courtesy Call to HE. Ambassador of Malaysia

12 August 2016 | Courtesy Call to H.E. Chea Chanto Governor, National Bank of Cambodia
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CALENDAR
OF EVENTS 2016 (CONTINUED)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

GRAND OPENING OF 2 NEW BRANCHES

e 12 August 2016 - The grand opening of the 2 new branches were officiated by Her Excellency Ouk
Maly, Deputy Governor, National Bank of Cambodia and was attended by His Excellency Dato’ Sri
Hasan Malek, Ambassador of Malaysia to the Kingdom of Cambodia, Tan Sri Azlan Zainol, Chairman
of RHB Bank Berhad, Tuan Haji Khairuddin Ahmad, Chairman of RHB Indochina Bank Limited, Dato’
Khairussaleh Ramli, Group Managing Director of RHB Bank Berhad as well as other Board of
Directors and Senior Management of the RHB Banking Group. This marks RHB Indochina
Bank’s 11th and 12th branch opened in Cambodia over a period of 8 years bringing
it to a total of eight branches in Phnom Penh and four branches in the

provinces, namely, Kampong Cham, Battambang, Siem Reap and Preah
Sihanouk.
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e 12 August 2016 - RHB Asset Management, a member of the
RHB Banking Group hosted 50 valued customers to introduce
the newly launched RHB Private Equity Fund at Sofitel Hotel
Phnom Penh.

e 12 August 2016 - The cocktail party was held to honour and
appreciates RHB Indochina Bank’s valued customers and business
partners who have supported the bank in its journey of success thus
far.
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CALENDAR
OF EVENTS 2016 (CONTINUED)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

e 12 August 2016 - Launch of RHB Moha Samnang Deposit Campaign where customers stand a chance to win a Mazda 2 car as grand prize.
Other prizes including Kawasaki motorbikes, iPhone and Samsung smartphones, Samsung TV and Cannondale bicycles which will be drawn
every month for 6 consecutive months.
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14 September 2016 | HR Forum 2016

22 October 2016 | RHB Annual Dinner & Team Building 2016

5-6 November 2016 | National Career Fairs 2016
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CALENDAR
OF EVENTS 2016 (CONTINUED)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

PHNOM PENH FINTECH BUSINESS HOURS AND FINTECH SOCIAL

e 2 December 2016 - The second collaboration between RHB and Startupbootcamp Fintech (“SBC”) to engage and offer expert advice to the
local start-up community in Cambodia via “Fintech Office Hours” and “Fintech Social” which were held in Phnom Penh. This initiative is in
line with the Group’s Digital Strategy to grow and nurture prospective start-ups with innovative digital solutions that have the potential to
be integrated into conventional banking services and operations. While the fintech scene in Cambodia is still at a nascent stage, ample
opportunities exist for RHB to strengthen its contribution in this area and gain recognition as the trusted partner to support this growing
ecosystem.
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22 December 2016 | First Lucky Draw Event “RHB Moha Samnang Deposit Campaign”

29 December 2016 | Prize Presentation “RHB Moha Samnang Deposit Campaign”
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NURTURING FUTURE GENERATIONS

HEALTH &

WELLNESS

- Healthy Living

A coordinated approach towards promoting and creating
awareness on Diabetes as a cause to champion:

1.Nurturing healthy lifestyles through outdoor activities
2.Advocating awareness on good health practices

NURTURING FUTURE

GENERATIONS

- Children and Youth

Nurture and provide opportunities for young individuals
to interact and embrace their fullest potential to be
outstanding members of society

HEALTH 4
CARE

A—

» a



W/“N

ENVIRONMENT

- Conservation

Implement and promote greening initiatives to reduce RHB’s
environmental footprint, which will also foster a culture of care and
respect for nature

ARTS &

CULTURE

- Preservation

Preserve, share and promote the creative arts with the aim of
generating awareness, appreciation, value and respect of local
emerging creative artists and their works




NURTURING FUTURE GENERATIONS

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

The one-day tournament is a corporate responsibility initiative by the RHB
Banking Group, whose CR philosophy centres around nurturing the next
generation of youth in communities where the Group has presence in,
especially the underprivileged.

This is in line with the Banking Group’s new brand promise, “Together We

Progress”, where RHB is committed to helping people and businesses
RHB Cambodia Junior grow and succeed, moving forward in unison to realise our greater
Football Cup 2016 potential together.
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NURTURING FUTURE GENERATIONS (conmnuen)

RHB BANKING BROUP AND RHB INDOCHINA BANK

The RHB Community Weekend was held between 20 - 21 August 2016 in
Malaysia and across the Asean region. The first-of-its-kind activity saw 32
groups who undertook 37 community projects within Malaysia and the region,
pooling together their resources to spend quality time with young people

from disadvantaged backgrounds. Needless to say, the effort was well worth
. every drop of sweat as the team left feeling humbled by their experience yet
RHB Community Weekend satisfied that they could give back to society in a meaningful way.
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NURTURING FUTURE GENERATIONS (conmnuen)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

RHB Community Weekend

A preschool to house 30 children was built by RHB Indochina Bank at Sa Ang Phnom Commune, Kandal Province,
with the help of Aide-et-Action under the “Early Childhood Development School Program”. The school was official
launched on 21st August 2016 by Commune Chief, the District Chief of Sa Ang and Her Excellency Heav Lun joined
by our Group Chief Strategy Officer, Mr Chris Loh and Country Head, Mr Lim Loong Seng. They event was attended
by 30 students, 120 villagers, 100 RHB staffs and partners including HGB Group, Cambodia Pan Pages, Hospitals

Beyond Boundaries, Roomchang Dental Hospital, Pepsi Cambodia, Myburgerlab, KFC and BassakaAir.

The heartfelt event includes providing water, sanitation, supplies, medical check-up for preschoolers and dental
hygiene demonstration. We are greatly humbled by the community’s warm gratitude and we hope that our efforts
will especially help these children be equipped with the skills and tools they will need to succeed in the future.
We planted two trees to provide extra shade and keep the school cool. However, these trees also represent
metaphorically what we hoped to give these students: the opportunity to grow.
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STAFF ENGAGEMENT conrinuen)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Our Third RHB Family Day was held on 17 July 2016 at the Fantastic
Water World, Grand Phnom Penh. Over 300 staff and family members
gathered for the day of fun, food and family bonding. With games and
activities that delight both young and old.

Family Day is one of the planned employee engagement initiatives in RHB
calendar event. It aims to continue to foster close working relationship
among all staff through outdoor activities. It also provide an opportunity
for our staff located at the provinces to be at one location to engage with
all their fellow colleagues based in Phnom Penh. This get together event
is a platform to instill RHB culture and PRIDE values while providing
motivation to staff and enhance teamwork.

RHB Family Day 2016
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STAFF ENGAGEMENT conrinuen)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Our 8th Annual Dinner was held on 22 October 2016 at Empress Angkor
Hotel in Siem Reap. The theme for 2016 was Phum Khmer, a traditional
Khmer theme that takes us back to the Bank’s beginning whilst honoring

the journey and achievements that the Bank has made in the last 8 years.

Entertaining and high energy performances were the trademark of RHB

Annual Dinner events, testament to the time, energy, commitment and
RHB Annual Party 2016 enthusiasm of the staff to make the night special.
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STAFF ENGAGEMENT conrinuen)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

The 2016 Team Building was held on 23 October 2016, with the theme
‘Ark Raiders of Angkor’ held at Eco Tourism Siem Reap. The committee

members of the event worked very hard to make the outdoor games
challenging yet enjoyable one. It was heartwarming to see participants
form bonds, positively compete with each other and displayed team spirit

RHB Team Building 2016 throughout the day.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

The Board of Directors (“the Directors”) is pleased to submit its report together with the financial statements of RHB Indochina Bank Limited

(“the Bank”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

THE BANK

The Bank was incorporated on 9 July 2008 and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of RHB Bank Berhad, a public limited liability company
incorporated in Malaysia.

The Bank is a commercial bank operating under the Cambodian Law on
Commercial Enterprises and the regulations of the National Bank of
Cambodia (“the Central Bank”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Bank is principally engaged in a broad range of commercial banking
activities in Cambodia.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The financial performance of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out in the income statement on page 097.

STATUTORY CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2016, the paid-up statutory capital of the Bank was
US$67,000,000 (US$1 par value per share). There was no change in
number of shares during the year.

PROVISIONS
There were no material movements to or from provisions during the year
other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL LOANS AND ADVANCES

Before the financial statements of the Bank were drawn up, the Directors
took reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation
to the writing off of bad loans and advances or making of provisions for
doubtful loans and advances, and satisfied themselves that all known
bad loans and advances had been written off and that adequate provision
has been made for bad and doubtful loans and advances.

At the date of this report and based on the best of knowledge, the
Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the
amount of the provision for bad and doubtful loans and advances in the
financial statements of the Bank inadequate to any material extent.
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ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Bank were drawn up, the Directors
took reasonable steps to ensure that all assets, other than debts which
were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business at their
values as shown in the accounting records of the Bank, have been written
down to an amount which they might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report and based on the best of knowledge, the
Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the
values attributed to the assets in the financial statements of the Bank
misleading in any material respect.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
At the date of this report, there is:

(a) no charge on the assets of the Bank which has arisen since the
end of the year which secures the liabilities of any other person,
and

(b) no contingent liahility in respect of the Bank that has arisen since
the end of the year other than in the ordinary course of the
banking business.

No contingent or other liability of the Bank has become enforceable, or
is likely to become enforceahle within the year of twelve months after
the end of the year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may
have a material effect on the ahility of the Bank to meet its obligations
as and when they become due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances,
not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the
Bank, which would render any amount stated in the financial statements
misleading in any material respect.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the performance of the Bank for the year were not, in the
opinion of the Directors, materially affected by any item, transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature. There has not arisen in the
interval between the end of the year and the date of this report any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the
opinion of the Directors, to substantially affect the results of the
operations of the Bank for the year in which this report is made.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The members of the Board of Directors holding office during the year and
at the date of this report are:

Ong Seng Pheow Chairman
Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed Member
Chulapong Yukate Member
Dato’ Khairussaleh Ramli Member

Christopher Loh Meng Heng Member

Lim Loong Seng Member

Tuan Haji Khairuddin Ahmad Chairman

(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
Foo San Kan Member

(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
Leong Yeng Kit Member

(Resigned as at 20 December 2016)
Choong Tuck Onn Member

(Resigned as at 27 January 2016)
U Chen Hock Member

(Resigned as at 27 January 2016)

THE DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements
are properly drawn up so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2016 and the financial
performance and cash flows of the Bank for the year. In preparing these
financial statements, the Directors are required to:

i)  adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates and then apply
them consistently;

ii) comply with the disclosure requirements of the Cambodian
Accounting Standards and guidelines of the National Bank of
Cambodia or, if there have been any departures in the interests of
fair presentation, these have been appropriately disclosed,
explained and quantified in the financial statements;

iii) maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system of
internal controls;

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR / 20

iv) prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it
is inappropriate to assume that the Bank will continue operations
in the foreseeable future; and

v) effectively control and direct the Bank in all material decisions
affecting the operations and performance and ascertain that such
have been properly reflected in the financial statements.

The Directors confirm that the Bank have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements, together with the notes thereto,
which present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Bank as at 31 December 2016, and the financial performance and cash
flows of the Bank for the year in accordance with Cambodian Accounting
Standards and the guidelines of National Bank of Cambodia, were
approved by the Board of Directors.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Ong Seng Pheow
Chairman
Date: 17 February 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RHB INDOCHINA BANK LIMITED

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements of RHB Indochina Bank Limited
(“the Bank”) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Bank as at 31 December 2016, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Cambodian
Accounting Standards and the guidelines of the National Bank of
Cambodia (“the Central Bank”).

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED
The Bank’s financial statements comprise:

. Balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

. Income statement for the year then ended;

. Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
. Cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

. The notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Cambodian International
Standards on Auditing (CISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”) and the requirements of Kampuchea Institute
of Certified Public Accountant and Auditors’ Code of Ethics for Certified
Public Accountants and Auditors (“KICPAA Code”). We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and
ethical requirements of KICPAA Code.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises appendix notes on requirement of the Central
Bank’s Prakas but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with Cambodian Accounting
Standards and the guidelines of the Central Bank, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with CISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the the Bank to cease to continue
as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

For PricewaterhouseCoopers (Cambodia) Ltd.

By Lang Hy

Associate partner

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
Date: 27 February 2017
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INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to the provision of Article 25 of the Prakas B-7-010-172 Prokor
on Internal Control of Bank and Financial Institutions issued on 28
September 2010 and Letter B-7-015-161 SCN issued on 3 March 2015,
Cambodian banking institutions shall establish an annual report on the
organisation and effectiveness of the internal control system.

The statement below has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines
as set out in the “Prakas on the Internal Control of Bank and Financial
Institutions: Guideline for Completing the Annual Report on the
Organisation and Effectiveness of the Internal Control”.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility in establishing a sound
risk management and internal control system and for assessing its
effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage risks within
established risk appetite and risk tolerance rather than total elimination
of risks to achieve the Bank’s business objectives. The system can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Board is assisted by the Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) and
Audit Committee (“AC”) which have been delegated with primary
oversight responsibilities and Bank’s risk management and internal
control system.

The Board is further assisted by the Management who is responsible for
implementing the Bank’s policies and processes to identify, evaluate,
monitor and report on risks as well as the effectiveness of the internal
control systems, taking appropriate and timely corrective actions as
required, and to provide assurance to the Board that the processes have
been carried out. In this regard, the Board has received assurance from
the Managing Director as well as the Head of Risk Management that the
Bank’s risk management and internal control system is operating
adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, based on the risk
management and internal control system of the Bank.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
. Risk Management

Risk management is integral to all aspects of the Bank’s activities
and is the responsibility of all staff. The Bank has put in place a
risk management framework approved by the Board for identifying,
evaluating, managing and reporting of significant risks faced by
the Bank that may affect the achievement of the Bank’s business
objectives.
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The Bank’s risk management framework seeks to ensure that
there is an effective on-going process in place to manage risk
across the Bank. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board
through its RMC which provides oversight over the risk
management activities for Bank to ensure that the Bank’s risk
management process is functional and effective.

The Board, through the RMC function, establishes the risk
appetite and risk tolerance for the Bank and relevant entities. The
defined risk appetite and risk tolerance are regularly reviewed by
the Management and the Board in line with the Group’s business
strategies and operating environment. On the quarterly basis, a
Bank Risk Management Report which includes the Bank’s risk
metrics and tolerance dashboard is presented to the Board for
information, deliberation or decision making if necessary.

The RMC also assists the Board to review the Bank’s overall risk
management philosophy, frameworks, policies and models. In
discharging its overall duties and responsibilities, the RMC is
supported by the Risk Management function which monitors and
evaluates the effectiveness of the Bank’s risk management system
on an ongoing basis.

Risk Management function provides independent oversight on
business activities and implements the Group Risk Management
Framework in order to protect and safeguard the Bank’s assets,
and to prevent and mitigate financial and reputational losses to
the Bank. Its responsibilities include implementation to the
Bank’s risk policy and framework, daily risk measurement and
monitoring, provision of timely risk analysis to Management,
ensuring compliance to regulatory risk reporting requirements,
overseeing group-wide risk credit evaluation and assessment as
well as implementing a comprehensive enterprise-wise risk
governance framework and robust risk management infrastructure.

In line with regulatory requirements and industry best practices,
the Bank subscribes to the principle that risk management is a
core responsibility of the respective businesses and operating
departments. This has been articulated and documented in the
risk management framework of the Bank.

To support and promote accountability and ownership of risk
management, a Risk and Control Self-Assessment (“RCSA”)
framework has been implemented in business and functional
units within the Bank as part of the risk management process.
These business and functional units are required to identify and
document the controls and processes for managing the risks
arising from their business activities, as well as to assess the
effectiveness thereof to ensure that the risks identified are
adequately managed and mitigated.
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Internal Control System

The Bank’s internal control systems which encompasses the
policies, procedures processes, organisational structures, tasks
and other control aspects is implemented for assuring the
achievement of the Bank’s objectives in operational effectiveness
and efficiency, reliable financial reporting and compliance with
laws, regulations and policies.

CONTOL ENVIRONMENT AND CONTROL ACTIVITIES

Organisation Structure

The Bank has a clear organisational structure with well-defined
accountabilities and responsibilities, and lines of reporting. The
organisational structure provides the basis framework to help the
Bank’s operations proceed smoothly and functionally as well as
depicting the span of control in ensuring effective supervision of
day-to-day business conduct and accountability.

Internal Policies and Procedures

Policies, procedures and processes governing the Bank’s
businesses and operations are documented and are communicated
group-wide as well as made available to employee through the
Bank’s intranet portal for ease of reference and compliance.
These policies, procedures and processes are reviewed and
updated by the business and functional units through a structured
process of review to cater to changes in laws and regulations as
well as changes to the business and operational environment.
Furthermore, reviews of the policies, procedures and processes
are also carried out to ensure that appropriate controls are in
place to manage risks inherent to the business and operations.

Authority Limits

Delegation of authority including authorisation limits at various
levels of Management in the Bank are documented and designed
to ensure accountability and responsibility.

Information Technology (IT) Security

The objectives of the IT security encompass the protection of
programs, data, information stored and facilities of the
computerised data processing system from unauthorised access
and use, loss or destruction as well as reliability and continuous
availability of the computerised data processing systems.

Computer equipment and information assets of various forms are
provided to enable employees of the Bank and relevant third
parties to satisfactorily complete their duties. These assets,
depending on its value and risk exposure, are subjected to
controls that are designed to protect them from accidental or
intentional loss, or unauthorised access, modification,
manipulation and disclosure.
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IT security protects information from a wide range of threats as
well as safeguards the confidentiality, integrity and availability of
information. IT security in the Bank is achieved through the
implementation of a suitable set of controls which includes
policies, standards, procedures, guidelines, organisational
structures and software control functions.

Budgeting Process

A robust budgeting process is established requiring all key
operating departments in the Bank to prepare budgets and
business plans annually for approval by the Board. The Bank’s
budget and business plans as well as strategic initiatives, taking
into account the risk appetite, were deliberated at the Board
where the Bank budget was presented.

Human Capital Management

One of the key constituents of any internal control system is its
people and that our system of risk management and internal
control is dependent on the responsibility, integrity and judgement
that people apply to their work. Hence, the Bank has in place
policies and procedures that govern recruitment, appointment,
performance management, compensation and reward, as well as
policies and procedures that govern discipline, termination and
dismissal.

For sustainable growth, the Bank places emphasis on human
capital development, talent management and succession planning.
To enhance staff competencies, structured and technical training
as well as management and leadership skills are provided to staff
based on their identified needs during the annual performance
assessment. For talent management, initiatives such as Leadership
Development Programme, Individual Development Plan and
Mentoring are implemented to develop identified talents in the
Bank to facilitate the continuous supply of high potentials and
suitable successors for future leadership roles.

Code of Ethics and Conduct

The Bank Code of Ethics and Conduct (“the Code”) sets out the
standards of good and ethical banking practices, as well as aims
to maintain confidence in the security and integrity of the Bank’s
business practices. It is a requirement that all employees of the
Bank understand and observe the Code. New recruits are briefed
on the Code and are required to sign the Employee Declaration
of Compliance Form upon joining the Bank.

The Bank has also established the Gifts and Hospitality Guidelines
to promote integrity and transparency for giving and receiving
gifts. The Guidelines complement the Code and are designed to
help the Bank and its employee understand the respective
parties’ obligation in upholding corporate integrity about gifting.
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CONTOL ENVIRONMENT AND CONTROL ACTIVITIES (continued)

Fraud Risk Management Policy

The Fraud Risk Management Policy is designed to promote
consistent organisational behaviour through the development,
implementation, and regular review of fraud prevention, detection
and response strategies. The Policy defines the core governing
principles for fraud management with the Bank which include
leadership and ethical culture, fraud awareness, detection,
reporting and escalation as well as fraud response with
appropriate corrective actions.

Business Continuity Plan and Disaster Recovery Plan

The Bank recognises and is fully committed to the need to
provide continuous critical services to its customers, ensure the
safety of its employees, protect its assets / data and safeguard
the interest of its key stakeholders that collectively ensure the
viability of the organisation. The Bank’s Business Continuity
Management (BCM) Programme is based on good business
continuity practices and guidelines which are in line with the
Group and internationally recognised standards.

The Bank has on-going and actively managed BCM programmes,
which include effective crisis management to deal with real crisis.
The BCP and Disaster Recovery is subject to regular testing /
exercising to ensure their efficacy, reliability and functionality.
Simulation exercise and drills are conducted to familiarise and
equip staff with the skills and techniques requirement to identify,
assess, respond and cope with a serious situation.

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION

Performance Review

Regular and comprehensive information is provided by
Management to monitor their performance against the strategic
business plan and the annual budget approved by the Board. This
information covers all key financial and operational indicators as
well as key strategic initiatives undertaken by the Bank during
the year.

The Board and the Management Committee receive and review
financial reports on the Bank’s monthly and quarterly financial
performance against approved targets and the reasons for any
significant variances as well as and measures that are being put
in place to meet such targets.
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Whistle Blower Policy

There is an established process for reporting anyone found to be
abusing or circumventing processes and controls of the Bank. All
staff are accorded the opportunity to report via the Whistle-
Blowing mechanism with the assurance that it will be dealt with
confidentiality and that the reporter’s identity will be protected.

Incident Management Reporting

To complement the Bank’s system of internal control, a
comprehensive incident management reporting system has been
implemented to ensure proper escalation and management of
incidents. The incident management reporting system also
ensures that all incidences with material risk and losses are
escalated promptly to Senior Management and the Board with
necessary steps taken to mitigate any potential risks that may
arise. This enables decision makers to undertake informed
decision making and be kept up to date on situations as well as
manage risks effectively.

MONITORING

Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain responsibilities to the Board
committees established in the Bank, namely the Risk Management
Committee, Audit Committee and Remuneration & Nominating
Committee.

These Board Committees have been delegated with specific
duties to review and consider all matters within their scope of
responsibility as defined in their respective terms of reference.

Management Committee

The Management Committee (“Manco”) comprises key
management personnel of the Bank and is chaired by the
Managing Director/Country Head of the Bank. The Manco provides
a forum for the Bank’s Senior Management to discuss and
deliberate on strategic matters that impact the Bank’s vision,
strategic directions, business synergies and brand value as well
as to chart its strategic roadmap. The Manco meets on monthly
basis and the minutes of meeting are tabled to the Group
International Business Council and Board of the Bank for notation.

DRIVING SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE - TOGETHER WE PROGRESS



Compliance

Compliance is the collective responsibility of the Board, Senior
Management and every employee of the Bank. Therefore, everyone
concerned is expected to promote self-regulation and be
accountable for his or her own activities while maintaining ethical
principles and behaviour in everything that he or she does.

The Bank Senior Management supports the Board and Risk
Management Committee in managing compliance risks of the
Bank by ensuring there is a compliance programme in place and
regularly reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the program
in managing compliance risk. Additionally, the Bank Senior
Management has established a compliance function at Bank level
which is independent and which has direct access to the RMC and
Board. A Head of Compliance Officer oversees the Bank’s overall
compliance management.

To facilitate the understanding of guidelines and Laws in enabling
compliance, the Compliance Department organises engagement
sessions with relevant business and functional units, providing
advice on the key requirements and implications of the guidelines
and Laws.

Internal Audit Function

Internal Audit (“IA”) function assists the Board and Audit
Committee (AC) by providing independent and objective assurance
in respect of the adequacy of the design and operating
effectiveness of the Bank’s risk management framework, control
and governance processes implemented across the Bank.

The Internal Audit plan is developed based on a risk-based
approach and is approved by the AC annually. Audit reports
which include significant findings are recommended for
improvement, and Management’s response to the recommendations
are tabled to Manco and AC on the monthly basis and quarterly
basis respectively.

The Head of Internal Audit reports functionally to the AC thru
Group Internal Audit and administratively to the Managing
Director to ensure IA’s independence from Management.

The AC holds regular meetings to deliberate on the findings and
recommendations for improvement highlighted by both the
internal and external auditors as well as the regulatory authorities
on the state of the Bank’s internal control system. The minutes of
the meetings of the AC are subsequently tabled to the Board for
notation while the highlights of the AC are subsequently table to
the respective Boards by the Chairman of AC.
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Conflict of Interest

There is an establishment of an effective segregation of duties
and prevention from conflict of interest situations via independent
checks, review and reconciliation activities to prevent human
errors, fraud and abuses.

Anti-Money Laundering / Combating the Financing of Terrorism
(“AML/CFT”)

The AML/CFT Programme is continuously reviewed and updated
to meet the regulatory requirements as well as to combat money
laundering and financing of terrorism activities. All employees are
expected to carry out their functions with the highest ethical and
professional standards in accordance with the AML/CFT
Programme and to be continuously vigilant against the Bank
being exposed or used to launder money or finance illegal
activities including terrorist financing.

The Board believes that the system of internal control in the Bank
are adequate and have been effective, with no significant
problems noted during the period under review.
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Activities Of The Audit Committee And The Internal Audit Function During The Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016 (“year”), a total of
four (4) Audit Committee (“AC”) meetings were held. The AC comprises
the following members and the details of attendance of each member at
the AC meetings held during the year are as follows:

Attendance
at Meetings

4/4 (100%)

Composition of the AC

1. Chulapong Yukate
(Chairman/ Independent Non-Executive Director)

2. Foo San Kan 4/4 (100%)
(Chairman/ Independent Non-Executive Director)

Resigned on 20 December 2016

3. Leong Yeng Kit
(Member/ Independent Non-Executive Director)
Resigned on 20 December 2016

4. Ong Seng Pheow N/A
(Member/ Independent Non-Executive Director)
Appointed on 20 December 2016

5. Encik Abdul Aziz Peru Mohamed - Chairman N/A
(Member/ Independent Non-Executive Director)
Appointed on 20 December 2016

4/4 (100%)

Note:

The main activities undertaken by the AC during the year are summarised
as follows:

. Reviewed the quarterly unaudited financial results and the annual
audited financial statements of RHB Indochina Bank Limited (“the
Bank”) prior to the approval by the Board;

. Reviewed the audit plan of the external auditors, the audit
strategy, risk assessment and areas of audit emphasis for the
year;

. Reviewed with the external auditors, the results of their annual

audit and audit committee report together with the Management’s
response to their findings and recommendations;

. Reviewed the non-audit services rendered by the external auditors
and the related fees taking into consideration the fees threshold
established under the Bank policy;

. Evaluated the performance of the external auditors and made the
necessary recommendations to the Board for consideration in
relation to their appointment and audit fees;
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. Reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plan to ensure
adequacy of scope and coverage of the identified auditable areas
including staffing requirements;

. Reviewed the internal audit reports, audit recommendations and
Management’s responses to these recommendations as well as
actions taken to improve the system of internal controls and
procedures, and completion of the internal audit plan;

. Reviewed the related party transactions entered into by the Bank;

. Tabled the minutes of each AC meeting to the Board for notation,
and for further direction by the Board, where necessary.

During the year, the Members of the AC attended the following training
programmes, conferences and seminars:

. Corporate Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries

. Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPPA) for Board of Directors
& Senior Management

. Digital Signature Training To RHB Board of Directors

. Malaysian Financial Reporting Standard 9 - Financial Instruments
for RHB Banking Group Directors

. FIDE FORUM Dialogue on Directors’ and Officer Liability Insurance

. Mandatory Accreditation Programme For Directors Of Public
Listed Companies

. Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Financing of Terrorism for RHB
Banking Group BODs & GMCs and Heads

. New Companies Act 2016

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Bank has an in-house internal audit department (“Internal Audit”)
which is guided by the Internal Audit Charter and reports to the AC.
Internal Audit’s primary role is to assist the AC in the discharge of their
duties and responsibilities by independently reviewing and reporting on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s risk management, internal
control and governance processes.

The AC approves the annual internal audit plan at the beginning of each
financial year. Internal Audit adopts a risk-based approach towards the
planning and conduct of audits, which is consistent with the Bank’s
framework in designing, implementing and monitoring its internal control
system.
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Upon completion of the audits, Internal Audit closely monitors the
implementation progress of its audit recommendations in order to obtain
assurance that all major risk and control concerns have been duly
addressed by Management. All audit reports on the results of work
undertaken together with the recommended action plans and their
implementation status are then presented to the Management and the
AC.

Internal Audit works closely with the external auditors to resolve any
control issues raised by them to ensure that all reported issues are duly
acted upon by Management.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

1. Composition

a) The Committee members shall be appointed by the BOD from
amongst the directors of the Bank.

b) The Committee shall consist of a minimum of three (3)
members.

2. Chairman

a) The members of the Committee shall elect the Chairman from
among their number.

b) The Committee shall be chaired by the Chairman.

REPORTING STRUCTURE
Whilst the Committee reports to BOD, regular audit reports are to be
tabled to Group AC as part of group oversight requirements.

DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

1. Fair and Transparent Reporting
Ensure fair and transparent reporting and prompt publication of
the financial statements.

2. Effectiveness of Internal Audit

a) Oversee the functions of the Internal Audit Department and
ensure compliance with relevant regulatory requirements.

b) Review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and
resources of the internal audit department, and that it has the
necessary authority to carry out its work.

c) Review the internal audit programme, internal audit findings
and if necessary, recommend actions to be taken by the
management.
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Internal Controls

Review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk management
processes.

External Auditors

a)
b)

c)

d)

d)

e)

g)

h)

Recommend external auditors for appointment by the BOD.
Recommend removals of external auditors by BOD.

Assess objectivity, performance and independence of external
auditor (e.g. by reviewing and assessing the various
relationships between the external auditor and the Bank or
any other entity).

To appoint, set compensation, evaluate performance and
decide on the transfer or dismissal of the Head of Internal
Audit Department of the Bank.

Review with the external auditor, the audit scope and plan,
including any changes to the scope of the audit plan.

Review with the external auditor, his evaluation of the system
of internal controls and his audit report.

Review the external auditor’s management letter and
response.

Regularly review the audit findings and ensure that issues are
being managed and rectified appropriately and in a timely
manner.

Review the periodic financial statements, prior to the approval
by the BOD, focusing particularly on:

Changes in or implementation of major accounting policy
changes.

ii) Significant and unusual events.

iii) Compliance with accounting standards and other legal
requirements.

Have direct communication channels with the external
auditors and able to meet with the external auditors without
the presence of management, at least once a year.

Review any letter of resignation from the external auditors of
the Bank.

Approve the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor.

Ensure that there are proper checks and balances in place so
that the provision of non-audit services does not interfere
with the exercise of independent judgment of the auditors.
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Related Party Transactions

Review any related party transaction and conflict of interest
situation that may arise within the Bank including any transaction,
procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of
management integrity.

AUTHORITY

The Committee shall within its terms of reference:

a)
b)

)

d)

e)

f)

g)

have the resources which are required to perform its duties;

have full and unrestricted access to any information as required
to perform its duties;

have the authority to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference;

have the authority to form management / sub-committee(s) if
deemed necessary and fit;

have the authority to delegate any of its responsibilities to any
person or committee(s) that is deemed fit;

be able to obtain independent professional or other advice; and

be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, the
internal auditors or both, excluding the attendance of other
directors and employees of the Bank, and with other external
parties, whenever deemed necessary.

MEETINGS AND MINUTES

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

The Committee shall preferably meet on quarterly basis, but in
any event, no less than four (4) times a year, or whenever
deemed necessary.

The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or
50% of the total members, whichever is higher.

The Committee may convene meetings at any place in Cambodia
or other country.

The Committee is also allowed to carry out the resolution by way
of circulation.

Heads of the respective divisions and relevant management
personnel (and others if deemed necessary) may be invited to
attend the Committee meetings.
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f)

g)

h)

The Committee may meet together for dispatch of business,
adjourn, and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit
by means of any communication technology by which all persons
participating in the meeting are able to hear and be heard by all
other participants without the need for a member to be in the
physical presence in the meeting. The member participating in
any such meeting shall be counted in the quorum for such
meeting. All resolutions agreed by the member in such meeting
shall be deemed to be as effective as a resolution passed at a
meeting in person of the members duly convened and held.

Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any
meeting of the Committee shall be decided by a simple majority
of the members present.

The Chairman shall nominate any person as Secretary and
minutes of meetings shall be taken.
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015
Note uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
ASSETS
Cash on hand 6,256,945 25,259,287 3,805,590 15,412,640
Balances with the Central Bank 4 146,491,301 591,385,382 112,359,292 455,055,133
Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions 5 115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014
Loans and advances to customers 6 347,575,673 1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469
Other assets 7 2,931,117 11,832,919 15,241,270 61,727,142
Deferred tax assets 20(a) 637,890 2,575,162 151,520 613,656
Intangible assets 8 295,308 1,192,158 353,150 1,430,258
Property and equipment 9 2,955,017 11,929,404 2,914,540 11,803,887
TOTAL ASSETS 622,894,516  2,514,625,161 563,943,753 2,283,972,199

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and other

financial institutions 10
Deposits from customers 11
Current income tax 20(b)
Other liabilities 12
TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 13

Retained earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

231,367,484 934,030,533 262,539,327 1,063,284,274
297,271,520 1,200,085,126 216,199,505 875,607,995
1,610,398 6,501,177 1,722,942 6,977,915
8,198,445 33,097,122 5,732,717 23,217,504
538,447,847  2,173,713,958 486,194,491 1,969,087,688
67,000,000 270,479,000 67,000,000 271,350,000
17,446,669 70,432,203 10,749,262 43,534,511
84,446,669 340,911,203 77,749,262 314,884,511
622,894,516  2,514,625,161 563,943,753  2,283,972,199

The accompanying notes on page 100 to 139 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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INCOME STATEMENT

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015

Note uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Interest income 14 32,740,161 132,172,030 24,494,670 99,203,414
Interest expense 15 (14,548,943)  (58,734,083)  (9,799,719)  (39,688,862)
Net interest income 18,191,218 73,437,947 14,694,951 59,514,552
Fee and commission income 16 2,561,002 10,338,765 2,994,301 12,126,919
Fee and commission expense (7,811) (31,533) (16,316) (66,080)
Net fee and commission income 2,553,191 10,307,232 2,977,985 12,060,839
Other operating income 183,267 739,849 151,750 614,588
Total operating income 20,927,676 84,485,208 17,824,686 72,189,979
Personnel expenses 17 (3,376,220) (13,629,800) (3,448,087) (13,964,752)
Depreciation and amortisation charges 18 (1,035,209) (4,179,139) (1,044,770) (4,231,319)
Administrative and operating expenses 19 (3,012,420) (12,161,140) (2,500,055) (10,125,223)
Profit before provision for loan losses 13,503,827 54,514,949 10,831,774 43,868,685
Provision for loan losses 6 (5,078,809) (20,503,152) (2,823,668) (11,435,855)
Profit before income tax 8,425,018 34,011,797 8,008,106 32,432,830
Income tax expense 20(c) (1,727,611) (6,974,365) (2,137,283) (8,655,996)
Profit for the year 6,697,407 27,037,432 5,870,823 23,776,834
Attributable to
The parent of the Bank 6,697,407 27,037,432 5,870,823 23,776,834

The accompanying notes on page 100 to 139 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Attributable to the parent of the Bank

Share Retained
capital earnings Total
uss us$ uss
Balance as at 01 January 2015 52,000,000 4,878,439 56,878,439
Capital injection 15,000,000 15,000,000
Profit for the year 5,870,823 5,870,823
Balance as at 31 December 2015 67,000,000 10,749,262 77,749,262
In KHR’000 equivalent 271,350,000 43,534,511 314,884,511
Balance as at 01 January 2016 67,000,000 10,749,262 77,749,262
Profit for the year 6,697,407 6,697,407
Balance as at 31 December 2016 67,000,000 17,446,669 84,446,669
In KHR’000 equivalent 270,479,000 70,432,203 340,911,203

The accompanying notes on page 100 to 139 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016 2015
Note uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash from operations 21 12,055,482 48,667,981 57,532,844 233,008,018
Interest received 32,906,597 132,843,932 24,494,670 99,203,414
Interest paid (13,854,444)  (55,930,390) (9,799,719)  (39,688,862)
Income tax paid (2,326,525) (9,392,181) (1,962,504) (7,948,141)
Cash generated from operating activities 28,781,110 116,189,342 70,265,291 284,574,429
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of:

- intangible assets 8 (45,935) (185,440) (137,108) (555,287)

- property and equipment 9 (979,745) (3,955,231) (657,320) (2,662,146)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary 12,500,000 50,462,500 -
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment 14,800 59,748 23,473 95,066
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 11,489,120 46,381,577 (770,955) (3,122,367)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from capital injection - 15,000,000 60,750,000
Net cash generated from financing activities - 15,000,000 60,750,000
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 40,270,230 162,570,919 84,494,336 342,202,062
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 125,175,701 506,961,590 40,681,365 165,776,562
Translation differences - (1,627,286) - (1,017,034)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 22 165,445,931 667,905,223 125,175,701 506,961,590
The accompanying notes on page 100 to 139 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

RHB Indochina Bank Limited (“the Bank”), established on 9 July 2008, was registered with the Ministry of Commerce and was granted a
banking license by the National Bank of Cambodia (“the Central Bank”) on 3 October 2008. The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
RHB Bank Berhad, a public limited liability company incorporated in Malaysia and is the ultimate holding company of the RHB Banking
Group pursuant to the Group Corporate Structure effective from 13 June 2016.

The Bank is principally engaged in a broad range of commercial banking activities in Cambodia.

The registered head office of the Bank is located at No. 263, Preah Ang Duong Street, Ground Floor Preah Ang Duong Street Phnom Penh,
the Kingdom of Cambodia. The Bank also has twelve branches including the main branch in Phnom Penh and provinces. The Phnom Penh
branches are located in Phnom Penh Main Branch, City Mall Olympic, Stoeung Meanchey, Kbal Thnal, Pet Lok Song, Toul Kork, Mao Tse
Tung and Boeung Keng Kang and provincial branches in Battambang, Kampong Cham, Siem Reap and Preah Sihanouk.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 February 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared using the historical cost convention, in accordance with the Cambodian
Accounting Standards (“CAS”) and guidelines of the Central Bank. In applying CAS, the Bank also apply the Cambodian International
Financial Reporting Standard (“CIFRS”) 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

The accounting principles applied may differ from generally accepted accounting principles adopted in other countries and
jurisdictions. The accompanying financial statements are therefore not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with jurisdictions other than Cambodia. Consequently, these financial statements are
addressed to only those who are informed about Cambodian accounting principles, procedures and practices.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the CAS and guidelines of the Central Bank requires the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

2.2 New financial reporting framework

On 28 August 2009, the National Accounting Council of the Ministry of Economy and Finance (“the National Accounting Council”)
announced the adoption of Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRS”) which are based on all standards
published by the International Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”), including the related interpretations and amendments. Public
accountable entities are required to prepare their financial statements in accordance with CIFRS for accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2012.

Circular 058 MoEF.NAC dated 24 March 2016 issued by the National Accounting Council of the Ministry of Economy and Finance
allowed banks and financial institutions to delay adoption of CIFRS until periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

CAS, the current accounting standard used, is different to CIFRS in certain areas. Hence, the adoption of CIFRS will have some
impacts on the financial statements of the Bank.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Foreign currencies

U]

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Bank operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in US dollars (“US$”), which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in currencies other than US$ are translated into US$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US$ at the year-end exchange rates, are recognised in the
income statement.

Presentation in Khmer Riel

For the sole regulatory purpose of complying with Prakas No. B7-07-164 dated 13 December 2007 of the Central Bank, a
translation into Khmer Riel is provided for the balance sheets, income statements, statements of changes in equity, cash
flow statements and notes to the financial statements as at and for the year year ended 31 December 2016 using the
average official exchange rate published by the Central Bank as at the reporting date, which was US$1 equal to Khmer Riel
(“KHR”) 4,037 (31 December 2015: US$1 equal to KHR 4,050). Such translated amounts are unaudited and should not be
construed as representations that the US$ amounts represent, or have been or could be, converted into Khmer Riel at that
or any other rate.

2.4  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturity of three months
or less from the date of acquisition, including cash on hand, the non-restricted balance with the Central Bank and balances with
banks and other financial institutions.

2.5 Loans and advances to customers

All loans and advances to customers are stated on the balance sheet at outstanding principal, less any amounts written off and
provision for loan losses.

Loans and advances are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery. Recoveries of loans and advances previously
written off or provided for are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

pace:102

Provision for loan losses

The Bank follows the mandatory credit classification and provisioning as required by Prakas B7-09-074 dated 25 February 2009
issued by the Central Bank. The Prakas requires commercial banks to classify their loans, advances and similar assets into five
classes and the minimum mandatory level of specific provisioning is provided, depending on the classification concerned and
regardless of the assets pledged as collateral as follows:

Classification ‘ Rate of provision (%)

General provision:

Normal 1

Specific provision:

Special mention 3
Substandard 20
Doubtful 50
Loss 100

Other credit related commitments

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into other credit related commitments including loan commitments, letters of
credit and guarantees. The accounting policy and provision methodology are similar to those for originated loans as stated above.
Specific provisions are raised against other credit related commitments when losses are considered probable.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, which comprise acquired computer software licenses and related costs, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment loss.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the cost incurred to acquire the specific software and bring it
to use. These costs are amortised over five years using the straight-line method. Costs associated with maintaining computer
software are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property and equipment are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as an asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9  Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property and equipment is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the individual assets at the followsing annual rates:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of its economic life and contractual terms

Office equipment 5

Furniture, fixtures and fittings

5
Computer equipment 3
Motor vehicles 5

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
income statement.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.

Any impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it arises. Reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised.

2.11 Interest income and expense
Interest earned on loans and advances to customers, balances with the Central Bank and balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions is recognised on an accrual basis, except where serious doubt exists as to the collectability, in which
case, interest is suspended until it is realised on a cash basis. The policy on the suspension of interest is in conformity with the
Central Bank’s guidelines on the suspension of interest on non-performing loans and provision for loan losses.
Interest expense on deposits from banks, other financial institutions and customers is recognised on an accrual basis.

2.12 Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service is provided. Loan processing fees are
recognised as income when loan is disbursed.
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

pace:104

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

When there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Bank.
Deferred and income taxes

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax law enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in
Cambodia where the Bank operates and generates taxable income.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Related-party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or can exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

In accordance with the Law on Banking and Financial Institutions, related parties are defined as parties who hold, directly or
indirectly, at least 10% of the capital or voting rights and include any individual who participates in the administration, direction,

management or internal controls of the Bank.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Bank makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and judgements that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period
are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank follows the mandatory credit classification and provisioning as required by Prakas No. B7-09-074 dated 25 February
2009 on asset classification and provisioning in banking and financial institutions issued by the Central Bank. The Central Bank
requires commercial banks to classify their loans, advances and similar assets into five classes and the minimum mandatory level
of provisioning is provided, depending on the classification concerned and regardless of the assets pledged as collateral. For the
purpose of loan classification, the Bank takes into account all relevant factors which may affect the counterparties’ repayment
abilities.

Taxes
Taxes are calculated on the basis of the current interpretation of the tax regulations. However, these regulations are subject to
periodic variation and the ultimate determination of tax expenses will be made following inspection by the General Department of

Taxation.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will have
an impact on the provision for income tax and deferred tax in the period in which such determination is made.

BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Current accounts 81,790,980 330,190,186 53,960,362 218,539,467
Clearing accounts 597,199 2,410,892 420,115 1,701,466
Reserve requirement (a) 54,353,580 219,425,403 48,784,987 197,579,197
Statutory deposit (b) 6,700,000 27,047,900 6,700,000 27,135,000
Negotiable certificate of deposits (c) 3,049,542 12,311,001 2,493,828 10,100,003

146,491,301 591,385,382 112,359,292 455,055,133
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. BALANCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Reserve requirement

The reserve requirement represents the minimum reserve which is calculated at 8% (2015: 8%) and 12.5% (2015: 12.5%) of
customers’ deposits in Khmer Riel (“KHR”) and other currencies respectively. The 4.5% (2015: 4.5%) reserve requirement on
customers’ deposits in currencies other than KHR is interest bearing while the remaining 8% and the reserve requirement on
customers’ deposits in KHR bear no interest.

Statutory deposit

Pursuant to Prakas No. B7-01-136 on Bank’s Capital Guarantee dated 15 October 2001 issued by the Central Bank, banking and
financial institutions are required to maintain 10% of its registered capital as a statutory deposit with the Central Bank. The
deposit, which is not available for use in the Bank’s day-to-day operations, is refundable should the Bank voluntarily cease its
operations in Cambodia.

Negotiable certificate of deposits (NCDs)

NCDs are tradable instruments between the banks. NCDs denominated in KHR can have maturity between two weeks and one year,
with interest rate ranging from 1.70% to 3.99% per annum and in US$ can have maturity between two weeks and six months,

with interest rate of 32 SIBOR. NCDs can be used for Repurchase Agreement and pledged as collateral in inter-bank markets.

The Bank’s NCDs amounting to US$3,049,542 (2015: US$2,493,828) was pledged as collaterals for three months for its overdraft
facility with the Central Bank. As at 31 December 2016, the Bank has yet utilised the overdraft facility.

Interest rates

The current and clearing accounts are non-interest bearing. The statutory and reserve requirement deposits earn interest at the
following annual rates as at the balance sheet date:

2016 2015
Reserve requirement 0.08% 0.08%
Statutory deposit 0.08% 0.08%
Negotiable certificate of deposits 0.54% - 0.98% 0.29% - 2.99%

5. BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Current accounts (non-interest bearing) 27,751,265 112,031,857 6,495,806 26,308,014
Term deposits (¥) 88,000,000 355,256,000 84,000,000 340,200,000
115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014
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5. BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

(*) All term deposit accounts have maturity within one year and earn interest at the following annual rates:

2016 2015

Term Deposit 1.10% - 5.20% 1.00% - 4.60%

6. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(@) By type
2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
Term loans 265,441,192 1,071,586,092 260,688,872 1,055,789,934
Housing loan 29,223,480 117,975,189 24,935,527 100,988,885
Vehicle loans 24,532 99,036 7,277 29,470
Overdrafts 59,965,411 242,080,364 55,826,204 226,096,126
Staff vehicle loan 199,134 803,904 130,122 526,994
Staff housing loan 3,068,612 12,387,986 2,468,563 9,997,679
Trust receipts 166,101 670,550 -
Gross loans and advances to customers 358,088,462 1,445,603,121 344,056,565 1,393,429,088
Provision for loan losses:
Specific (7,065,485) (28,523,363) (2,074,486) (8,401,668)
General (3,447,304) (13,916,766) (3,359,494) (13,605,951)
Net loans and advances to customers 347,575,673 1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469
Provision for loan losses
2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
At beginning of the year 5,433,980 22,007,619 2,610,312 10,637,021
Provision movement for the year 5,078,809 20,503,152 2,823,668 11,435,855
Currency translation differences - (70,642) - (65,257)
At end of the year 10,512,789 42,440,129 5,433,980 22,077,619
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NOTES TO

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

6. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

(c) By performance

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Normal loans
Secured 344,711,945 1,391,602,122 335,949,435 1,360,595,208
Unsecured 18,445 74,462 -
Special mention loans
Secured 4,522,303 18,256,537 5,113,440 20,709,434
Substandard loans
Secured 1,909,721 7,709,544 415,229 1,681,678
Doubtful loans
Secured 756,352 3,053,393 1,480,849 5,997,437
Loss loans
Secured 6,169,696 24,907,063 1,097,612 4,445,331
358,088,462 1,445,603,121 344,056,565 1,393,429,088
(d) By exposure
2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Large exposure 38,658,372 156,063,848 30,445,538 123,304,429
Non-large exposure 319,430,090 1,289,539,273 313,611,027 1,270,124,659
358,088,462 1,445,603,121 344,056,565 1,393,429,088

Large exposure is defined by the Central Bank as overall credit exposure to any single beneficiary that exceeds 10% of the Bank’s
net worth. The exposure is the higher of the outstanding loans or commitments and the authorised loans or commitments.

(e) Interest rates

Loans and advances to customers bear interest at the following rates per annum:

2016

2015

Term loans 7.50% - 15.25% 8.00% - 14.00%

Overdrafts 8.00% - 12.50%

8.00% - 12.00%
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7. OTHER ASSETS

Gross interest receivable
Less: interest in suspense

Net interest receivable

Claim receivable

Deposits

Prepayments

Supplies

Due from related parties (note 24)
Others

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
4,364,456 17,619,309 2,519,917 10,205,664
(2,491,243) (10,057,148) (480,267) (1,945,081)
1,873,213 7,562,161 2,039,650 8,260,583
140,452 567,005 54,352 220,126
396,711 1,601,522 186,624 755,827
130,099 525,210 278,542 1,128,095
108,248 436,997 115,448 467,564
53,000 213,960 12,500,000 50,625,000
229,394 926,064 66,654 269,947
2,931,117 11,832,919 15,241,270 61,727,142

All of other assets are expected to be recovered within one year after the year end, except for deposits of US$374,473 relating to rentals
for offices and ATM booths to be utilised later than one year after the year end.

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of intangible assets, which comprise computer software licenses, are as follows:

Cost
At the beginning of the year
Additions

At the end of the year

Accumulated amortisation
At the beginning of the year

Amortisation charge
At the end of the year
Net book value

In KHR’000 equivalent

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR / 2016

2016 2015

uss uss$
1,199,559 1,062,451
45,935 137,108
1,245,494 1,199,559
846,409 691,498
103,777 154,911
950,186 846,409
295,308 353,150
1,192,158 1,430,258
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NOTES TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of property and equipment are as follows:

Furniture,
Leasehold Office fixtures and Computer Motor
improvements equipment fittings equipment vehicles Total
uss uss uss$ uss uss$ uss
2016
Cost
At 01 January 2016 2,866,885 2,051,176 447,194 1,202,787 483,020 7,051,062
Additions 506,782 186,839 73,798 111,086 101,240 979,745
Disposals - - - - (36,200) (36,200)
At 31 December 2016 3,373,667 2,238,015 520,992 1,313,873 548,060 7,994,607
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 January 2016 1,488,054 1,317,066 216,130 872,399 242,873 4,136,522
Depreciation charge 328,935 271,209 61,484 182,832 86,972 931,432
Disposals - - - - (28,364) (28,364)
At 31 December 2016 1,816,989 1,588,275 277,614 1,055,231 301,481 5,039,590
Net book value 1,556,678 649,740 243,378 258,642 246,579 2,955,017
In KHR’000 equivalent 6,284,309 2,623,000 982,517 1,044,138 995,440 11,929,404
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9.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

2015

Cost

At 01 January 2015
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2015
Accumulated depreciation
At 01 January 2015
Depreciation charge
Disposals

At 31 December 2015

Net book value

In KHR’000 equivalent

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR / 2016

Furniture,

Leasehold Office fixtures and Computer Motor
improvements equipment fittings equipment vehicles Total
uss$ uss uss$ us$ uss$ uss
2,856,785 1,618,221 428,751 1,179,295 358,990 6,442,042
10,100 432,955 18,443 23,492 172,330 657,320
(48,300) (48,300)
2,866,885 2,051,176 447,194 1,202,787 483,020 7,051,062
1,201,620 1,046,903 163,580 676,786 195,868 3,284,757
286,434 270,163 52,550 195,613 85,099 889,859
(38,094) (38,094)
1,488,054 1,317,066 216,130 872,399 242,873 4,136,522
1,378,831 734,110 231,064 330,388 240,147 2,914,540
5,584,266 2,973,146 935,809 1,338,071 972,595 11,803,887
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NOTES TO

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

10. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Current accounts 2,628,331 10,610,572 2,491,595 10,090,960
Savings accounts 712,903 2,877,990 321,466 1,301,937
Term deposits 228,026,250 920,541,971 259,726,266 1,051,891,377
231,367,484 934,030,533 262,539,327 1,063,284,274

As at the balance sheet date, deposits from banks and other financial institutions bear interest rates at the following rates per annum;

depending on the terms and currencies. All deposits have maturity within one year.

2016 2015
Current accounts Nil Nil
Savings accounts Nil Nil
Term deposits 1.10% - 2.75% 0.65% - 3.25%
11. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Current accounts 53,777,712 217,100,623 26,259,705 106,351,805
Savings accounts 37,661,329 152,038,785 28,074,078 113,700,016
Term deposits 205,832,479 830,945,718 161,865,722 655,556,174
297,271,520 1,200,085,126 216,199,505 875,607,995

As at the balance sheet date, deposits from customers bear interest rates at the following rates per annum; depending on the terms and

currencies. All deposits have maturity within one year, except the amount of US$22,963,381 with maturity more than one year.

2016 2015
Current accounts 0.88% - 2.08% Nil
Savings accounts 1.25% 1.50%

Term deposits 2.00% - 5.75%

2.00% - 6.00%
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12,  OTHER LIABILITIES

2016 2015

uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000

Interest payable 4,381,846 17,689,512 3,687,347 14,933,755
Accrued bonuses 792,000 3,197,304 806,400 3,265,920
Cheques for collection 597,199 2,410,892 420,115 1,701,466
Withholding tax payable 112,883 455,709 94,424 382,417
Account payable 106,695 430,728 99,655 403,603
Salary tax payable 21,370 86,271 20,600 83,430
Others (*) 2,186,452 8,826,706 604,176 2,446,913
8,198,445 33,097,122 5,732,717 23,217,504

(*) Included in others, the amount of US$1,057,373 represents the overseas inwards to be credited to specific customer deposit account.

All of the above liabilities are expected to be settled within one year after the year end.

13.  SHARE CAPITAL

2016 2015
Shares Shares
(‘000) uss KHR’000 (‘000) uss KHR’000
Opening balance 67,000 67,000,000 271,350,000 52,000 52,000,000 211,900,000
Capital injection - - - 15,000 15,000,000 60,750,000
Translation differences - - (871,000) - - (1,300,000)
Closing balance 67,000 67,000,000 270,479,000 67,000 67,000,000 271,350,000

As at 31 December 2016, the authorised share capital of the Bank was US$67 million with 67 million ordinary shares at a par value of
US$1 each. All shares were issued and fully paid up.
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NOTES TO

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

14. INTEREST INCOME

Interest income from:
Loans and advances to customers

Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Balances with the Central Bank

Negotiable certificate of deposits

15.  INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense on:
Term deposits
Savings accounts

Current accounts

16. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Loan processing fees
Commission fee

Loan commitment fees
Others

pace:114

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
30,382,849 122,655,561 22,616,731 91,597,761
2,290,414 9,246,401 1,836,591 7,438,193
56,717 228,967 15,614 63,237
10,181 41,101 25,734 104,223
32,740,161 132,172,030 24,494,670 99,203,414

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
14,060,003 56,760,232 9,433,368 38,205,140
363,806 1,468,685 352,898 1,429,237
125,134 505,166 13,453 54,485
14,548,943 58,734,083 9,799,719 39,688,862

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
1,157,790 4,673,998 1,783,572 7,223,467
426,840 1,723,153 390,665 1,582,192
186,539 753,058 159,044 644,128
789,833 3,188,556 661,020 2,677,132
2,561,002 10,338,765 2,994,301 12,126,919
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17.  PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Bonuses and incentives

Other short-term benefits

18. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION CHARGES

Depreciation of property and equipment

(note 9)

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 8)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

AR / 2016

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
2,566,632 10,361,493 2,346,380 9,502,839
553,880 2,236,014 851,049 3,446,748
255,708 1,032,293 250,658 1,015,165
3,376,220 13,629,800 3,448,087 13,964,752
2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
931,432 3,760,191 889,859 3,603,929
103,777 418,948 154,911 627,390
1,035,209 4,179,139 1,044,770 4,231,319
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19. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES

2016 2015

uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000

Buildings rental 618,632 2,497,417 522,572 2,116,417
Repairs and maintenance 337,778 1,363,610 341,972 1,384,987
Publication, marketing and promotion 319,090 1,288,166 134,694 545,511
License fees 260,459 1,051,473 238,467 965,791
Security 224,612 906,759 177,773 719,981
Utilities 222,071 896,501 201,154 814,674
Insurance 146,363 590,867 119,288 483,116
Stationeries and printing 135,731 547,946 101,281 410,188
Business development 120,773 487,561 84,504 342,241
Telecommunication 98,056 395,852 93,678 379,396
Motor vehicle and running costs 89,852 362,733 98,063 397,155
Patent and other taxes 85,017 343,214 100,676 407,738
Board of Directors’ fees 78,200 315,693 79,682 322,712
Professional and other related costs 68,870 278,028 44,916 181,910
Materials for banking activities 42,053 169,768 39,209 158,796
Bank charges 30,221 122,002 28,689 116,190
Supplies 16,356 66,029 18,368 74,390
Other expenses 118,286 477,521 75,069 304,030
3,012,420 12,161,140 2,500,055 10,125,223

20. TAXATION

(a) Deferred tax assets

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

2016 2015
uss$ KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Deferred tax assets 716,595 2,892,894 272,337 1,102,965
Deferred tax liabilities (78,705) (317,732) (120,817) (489,309)
637,890 2,575,162 151,520 613,656
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20. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(a) Deferred tax assets (continued)

The movement of net deferred tax assets is as follows:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Balance at beginning of the year 151,520 613,656 -
Charge to the income statement 486,370 1,963,476 151,520 613,656
Currency translation differences - (1,970) -
Balance at end of the year 637,890 2,575,162 151,520 613,656

The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the period is as follows:

Accelerated

General depreciation and
loan loss provision amortisation Total
uss uss$ us$
At 01 January 2015 - - -
Charged to the income statement 272,337 (120,817) 151,520
At 31 December 2015 272,337 (120,817) 151,520
In KHR’000 equivalent 1,102,965 (489,309) 613,656
At 01 January 2016 272,337 (120,817) 151,520
Charged to the income statement 444,258 42,112 486,370
At 31 December 2016 716,595 (78,705) 637,890
In KHR’000 equivalent 2,892,894 (317,732) 2,575,162
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20. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Current income tax liabilities

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Opening balance 1,722,942 6,977,915 1,396,643 5,691,320
Charge during the year 2,213,981 8,937,841 2,288,803 9,269,652
Income tax paid (2,326,525) (9,392,181) (1,962,504) (7,948,141)
Currency translation differences - (22,398) - (34,916)
Closing balance 1,610,398 6,501,177 1,722,942 6,977,915

(c) Income tax expense

2016 2015

uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Income tax expense:

Current income tax 2,213,981 8,937,841 2,288,803 9,269,652
Deferred tax (486,370) (1,963,476) (151,520) (613,656)
1,727,611 6,974,365 2,137,283 8,655,996

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the statutory tax rate of 20% to taxation as disclosed in the income statement is as

follows:
2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Profit before income tax 8,425,018 34,011,797 8,008,106 32,432,830
Tax calculated at 20% 1,685,004 6,802,361 1,601,621 6,486,566
Tax effects in respect of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 42,607 172,004 535,662 2,169,430
Income tax expense 1,727,611 6,974,365 2,137,283 8,655,996

In accordance with the Cambodian tax laws, the Bank has an obligation to pay corporate income tax of either tax on profit at a
rate of 20% on taxable profit or 1% minimum tax, whichever is higher.
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CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation (note 18)
Provision for loan losses (note 6)

Gain on disposals of property and equipment
Net interest income

Operating loss before changes in working
capital

Change in working capital:
Balances with the Central Bank
Negotiable certificate of deposits

Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers
Other assets

Deposits from banks and other financial
institutions

Deposits from customers
Other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

AR / 2016

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
8,425,018 34,011,797 8,008,106 32,432,830
1,035,209 4,179,139 1,044,770 4,231,319
5,078,809 20,503,152 2,823,668 11,435,855
(6,964) (28,114) (64,574) (261,524)
(18,191,218) (73,437,947) (14,694,951) (59,514,552)
(3,659,146) (14,771,973) (2,882,981) (11,676,072)
(5,568,593) (22,480,410) (32,100,940) (130,008,807)
- 15,000,000 60,750,000
(16,000,000) (64,592,000) 12,500,000 50,625,000
(14,031,897) (56,646,768) (127,832,457) (517,721,451)
(356,284) (1,438,319) (811,381) (3,286,093)
(31,171,843) (125,840,730) 115,129,266 466,273,527
81,072,015 327,287,725 77,407,770 313,501,468
1,771,230 7,150,456 1,123,567 4,550,446
12,055,482 48,667,981 57,532,844 233,008,018
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22.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the cash flow statements, the cash and cash equivalents comprise:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Cash on hand 6,256,945 25,259,287 3,805,590 15,412,640
Balances with the Central Bank (note 4):
Current accounts 81,790,980 330,190,186 53,960,362 218,539,467
Clearing accounts 597,199 2,410,892 420,115 1,701,466
Negotiable certificate of deposits
(with maturity of three months or less) 3,049,542 12,311,001 2,493,828 10,100,003
Balances and placements with banks and
other financial institutions:
Current accounts (note 5) 27,751,265 112,031,857 6,495,806 26,308,014
Term deposits (with maturity of three
months or less) 46,000,000 185,702,000 58,000,000 234,900,000
165,445,931 667,905,223 125,175,701 506,961,590
23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(a) Commitments to extend credit
2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Unused portion of overdraft 25,106,102 101,353,334 17,011,029 68,894,667
Documentary credit 1,052,755 4,249,972 614,936 2,490,491
Other guarantees 5,569,512 22,484,120 2,475,739 10,026,743
31,728,369 128,087,426 20,101,704 81,411,901
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23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
The Bank has non-cancellable lease commitments in respect of its leases of premises.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases of the Bank are as follows:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
Future minimum lease payable:

- Not later than one year 707,048 2,854,353 590,732 2,392,465

- Later than one year but not later
than five years 1,412,099 5,700,644 1,528,534 6,190,563
- Over five years 679,446 2,742,924 536,163 2,171,459
2,798,593 11,297,921 2,655,429 10,754,487

24.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) Related parties and relationship

The related parties of, and their relationship with the Bank are as follows:

Relationship | Related party

Parent company RHB Bank Berhad
Related company All entities under the same ultimate parent company
Key management personnel All directors of the Bank who make critical decisions in relation

to the strategic direction of the Bank and senior management
staff (including their close family members)
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Due to related party balances and its transactions

2016 2015

uss KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
Due to parent company

- Term deposits 134,000,000 540,958,000 179,000,000 724,950,000
- Interest payable 358,389 1,446,816 430,921 1,745,231
134,358,389 542,404,816 179,430,921 726,695,231

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
- Interest expense 3,742,145 15,107,039 2,126,240 8,611,272

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000

Due to a related company

- Current accounts 113,016 456,246 7,086,634 28,700,868
- Term deposits 8,596,025 34,702,153 1,891,398 7,660,162
- Interest payable 88,716 358,146 83,416 337,835
8,797,757 35,516,545 9,061,448 36,698,865

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
- Interest expenses 291,766 1,177,859 1,039 4,208
- Referral fee 250 1,009 1,500 6,075
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(c) Due from related parties

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
Due from related companies 27,304 110,226 12,500,000 50,625,000
Due from parent company 25,696 103,734 -
53,000 213,960 12,500,000 50,625,000

The amount due from related companies and parent company is mainly related to various expenses that the Bank paid on behalf
and will be reimbursed from related companies and parent company.

(d) Key management personnel remuneration

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Salaries and short-term benefits 618,346 2,496,263 598,488 2,423,876
(e) Directors’ remuneration
2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Directors’ fees 78,200 315,693 79,682 322,712
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including credit risk, market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risk) and liquidity risk as well as operational risk. Taking risk is core to the financial business, and operational risk is an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Bank does not use derivative financial instruments to manage its risk exposures.

Financial assets are the contractual rights to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity. It is classified as loan and
receivables and comprised of cash on hand, balances with the Central Bank, balances with banks and other financial institutions, loans

to customers and other assets.

Financial liabilities are contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity. It is classified as other

liabilities and comprised of deposits from banks and other financial institutions, deposits from customers and other liabilities.

The financial assets (loan and receivables) and liabilities held by the Bank are as follows:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Current accounts
Cash on hand 6,256,945 25,259,287 3,805,590 15,412,640
Balances with the Central Bank (*) 85,437,721 344,912,080 56,874,305 230,340,935
Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions 115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014
Loans and advances to customers 347,575,673 1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469
Other assets 2,435,376 9,831,613 14,805,626 59,962,785
557,456,980 2,250,453,829 504,603,912 2,043,645,843
Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks and other financial
institutions 231,367,484 934,030,533 262,539,327 1,063,284,274
Deposits from customers 297,271,520 1,200,085,126 216,199,505 875,607,995
Other liabilities 5,572,949 22,497,995 5,617,693 22,751,657
534,211,953 2,156,613,654 484,356,525 1,961,643,926
Net financial assets 23,245,027 93,840,175 20,247,387 82,001,917

(*) It excluded the reserve and statutory deposits with the Central Bank.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss should any of the Bank’s customers, clients or market counterparties fail to fulfil
their contractual obligations to the Bank. Credit risk arises mainly from loans and advances and loan commitments arising from
such lending activities.

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Bank’s business; management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.

(a)

(b)

(c)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Credit risk measurement

The Bank has established the Core Credit Risk Policy, which is designed to govern the Bank’s risk undertaking activities.
Extension of credit is governed by credit programs which set out the plan for a particular product or portfolio, including
the target market, terms and conditions, documentation and procedures under which a credit product will be offered and
measured.

The Bank also ensures that there is a clear segregation of duties between loan originators, evaluators and approving
authorities.

Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages, limits and controls concentration of credit risk whenever they are identified, in particular, to individual
counterparties and groups, and to industries.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to
one borrower or group of borrowers, and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to
an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by product and industry
sector are approved by the Board of Directors.

Large exposure is defined by the Central Bank as overall credit exposure to any single beneficiary which exceeds 10% of
the Bank’s net worth. The Bank is required, under the conditions of Prakas No. B7-06-226 of the Central Bank, to maintain
at all times a maximum ratio of 20% between the Bank’s overall credit exposure to any single beneficiary and the Bank’s

net worth. The aggregate of large credit exposure must not exceed 300% of the Bank’s net worth.

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk, including requiring borrowers to pledge
collateral against loans and advances granted by the Bank.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The Bank is required to follow the mandatory credit classification and provisioning in accordance with the relevant Prakas,
as stated in note 2.6 to the financial statements.

Loan classification and loan loss provisioning are determined taking into account past due period of loans and advances
to customers and other relevant qualitative factors.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1

Credit risk (continued)

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The table below presents the maximum credit risk exposure of the Bank, without taking into account any collateral held or
other credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures are based on net carrying amounts. For credit
related commitments, the maximum exposure to credit risk represents the full amount of irrevocable committed facilities.

2016 2015

uss

KHR’000

uss

KHR’000

On-balance sheet assets

Balances and placements with banks and

other financial institutions 115,751,265
347,575,673

2,435,376

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

467,287,857
1,403,162,992
9,831,613

90,495,806
338,622,585
14,805,626

366,508,014
1,371,421,469
59,962,785

465,762,314

1,880,282,462

443,924,017

1,797,892,268

Off-balance sheet items

Commitment 31,728,369

128,087,426

20,101,704

81,411,901

497,490,683

2,008,369,888

464,025,721

1,879,304,169

To the extent possible, pledges of collateral are negotiated with the counterparties for the purposes of reducing credit risk.
The Bank take into consideration the marketability of the collateral as well as the adequacy of debt coverage in assessing
the acceptability of collateral. The main types of collateral and other credit enhancements obtained by the Bank in respect
of loans and advances to customers are properties and guarantees. Properties are valued periodically based on valuation
by independent professional valuers.

Management is confident of its ability to control and sustain minimal exposure to credit risk by the Bank resulting from
loans and advances based on the following:

. Approximately 99.99% (2015: 99.99%) of the loans and advances of the Bank are collaterised; and
. The Bank has a proper credit evaluation process in place for granting of loans and advances to customers.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)
(e) Credit quality of financial assets
Loans and advances to customers

As at the balance sheet date, exposures of the Bank to credit risk arising from loans and advances to customers (without
taking into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements and provision for loan losses) are as follows:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Loans and advances, net:
Neither past due nor impaired 341,283,086 1,377,759,818 332,589,941 1,346,989,257
Past due but not impaired 4,386,634 17,708,841 4,960,037 20,088,151
Individually impaired 1,905,953 7,694,333 1,072,607 4,344,061
347,575,673 1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469

All other financial assets held by the Bank as at the balance sheet date are neither past due nor individually impaired.

Bal ! ol ts with ban} | other financial instituti

Analysis of the balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions of the Bank as at the balance sheet
date by counterparty is as follows:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
In Cambodia:
Commercial banks 88,155,520 355,883,834 84,226,359 341,116,754
Outside Cambodia:
Commercial banks 27,595,745 111,404,023 6,269,447 25,391,260
115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014

Other assets

Other assets of the Bank mainly comprise interest receivable on placements with banks and other financial institutions and
refundable deposits placed by the Bank in respect of rental of premises.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)
(f) Credit quality of loans and advances to customers
i. Loans and advances that are past due but not impaired

The aging analysis of loans and advances that are past due but not impaired as at the balance sheet date (without
taking into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements) is as follows:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Past due period:
- < 30 days 3,272,843 13,212,467 1,815,394 7,352,346
- 30 to < 60 days 674,631 2,723,485 2,655,520 10,754,856
- 60 to < 90 days 574,829 2,320,585 644,756 2,611,263
4,522,303 18,256,537 5,115,670 20,718,465
Less: Provision (135,669) (547,696) (155,633) (630,314)
4,386,634 17,708,841 4,960,037 20,088,151

Loans that are past due below 30 days and 30 days or more but less than 90 days are classified as Normal loan
and Special Mention and subject to provision of 1% and 3% respectively.

Loans and advances that are past due for less than 90 days are generally not considered impaired unless other
information available indicates otherwise.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)
(f) Credit quality of loans and advances to customers (continued)
ii. Loans and advances that are individually impaired

The aging analysis of loans and advances that are past due for 90 days or more, which are considered impaired
(without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements) is as follows:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Past due period:
- 90 to < 180 days 1,909,721 7,709,544 415,229 1,681,677
- 180 to < 360 days 756,352 3,053,393 1,650,495 6,684,505
- 360 days or more 6,169,696 24,907,063 925,736 3,749,234
8,835,769 35,670,000 2,991,460 12,115,416
Less: Provision (6,929,816) (27,975,667) (1,918,853) (7,771,355)
1,905,953 7,694,333 1,072,607 4,344,061

() Repossessed collateral

The Central Bank requires banking institutions to classify repossessed property, if any as foreclosed property in the balance
sheet and to dispose of the property within one year.

During the period, the Bank did not obtain any asset by taking possession of collateral held as security.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)
(h) Credit risk concentration of financial assets
i. By geographical distribution

As at the balance sheet date, the credit exposures of the Bank are derived mainly from Cambodia based on the
country of domicile of the counterparties as follows:

Other
Cambodia countries Total
uss uss uss
2016
Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions 88,155,520 27,595,745 115,751,265
Loans and advances to customers 347,575,673 - 347,575,673
Other assets 2,435,376 - 2,435,376
438,166,569 27,595,745 465,762,314
In KHR’000 equivalent 1,768,878,439 111,404,023 1,880,282,462
2015
Balances and placements with banks and other 84,226,359 6,269,447 90,495,806
financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers 338,622,585 - 338,622,585
Other assets 2,305,626 12,500,000 14,805,626
425,154,570 18,769,447 443,924,017
In KHR’000 equivalent 1,721,876,008 76,016,260 1,797,892,268
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25.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1

Credit risk (continued)

(h)

Credit risk concentration of financial assets (continued)

ii. By industry sector

2016

Financial institution

Hotels and restaurants

Retail

Wholesale

Manufacturing

Agriculture, forestry and fishing
Mortgage, owner-occupied housing

Rental and Operational
Leasing Activities, excluded
Real Estate Leasing and
Rentals

Transport and storage
Utilities

Real estate activities
Construction

Other non-financial services

Information Media and
Telecommunications

Others

AR / 2016

Balances and

placements
with banks
and other Loan and
financial advances to Other
institutions customers assets Total Total
uss uss uss uss KHR’000
115,751,265 3,283,736 720,200 119,755,201 483,451,746
43,280,370 139,718 43,420,088 175,286,895
52,947,955 187,175 53,135,130 214,506,520
28,355,874 70,713 28,426,587 114,758,132
26,651,820 198,188 26,850,008 108,393,482
23,779,910 73,206 23,853,116 96,295,029
33,053,369 119,304 33,172,673 133,918,081
30,782,433 97,963 30,880,396 124,664,159
5,492,090 33,283 5,525,373 22,305,931
3,051,345 8,797 3,060,142 12,353,793
18,884,143 469,226 19,353,369 78,129,551
21,127,369 57,047 21,184,416 85,521,487
23,299,693 86,134 23,385,827 94,408,584
1,314,586 3,510 1,318,096 5,321,154
32,270,980 170,912 32,441,892 130,967,918
115,751,265 347,575,673 2,435,376 465,762,314 1,880,282,462
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.1 Credit risk (continued)

(h) Credit risk concentration of financial assets (continued)

ii. By industry sector (continued)
Balances and
placements
with banks
and other Loan and
financial advances to Other
institutions customers assets Total Total
uss uss uss uss KHR’000
2015
Financial institution 90,495,806 4,831,624 12,927,173 108,254,603 438,431,142
Hotels and restaurants 52,483,831 255,376 52,739,207 213,593,788
Retail 51,312,950 176,806 51,489,756 208,533,512
Wholesale 26,055,976 53,572 26,109,548 105,743,669
Manufacturing 25,718,758 180,036 25,898,794 104,890,116
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 23,657,307 282,555 23,939,862 96,956,441
Mortgage, owner-occupied housing 29,080,233 137,532 29,217,765 118,331,948
Rental and Operational
Leasing Activities, excluded
Real Estate Leasing and
Rentals 34,449,364 115,383 34,564,747 139,987,225
Transport and storage 5,044,965 50,013 5,094,978 20,634,661
Utilities 3,676,323 74,177 3,750,500 15,189,525
Real estate activities 14,885,818 227,143 15,112,961 61,207,492
Construction 22,845,460 152,707 22,998,167 93,142,576
Other non-financial services 24,040,307 94,408 24,134,715 97,745,596
Personal 252,893 380 253,273 1,025,756
Information Media and
Telecommunications 1,251,507 3,228 1,254,735 5,081,677
Others 19,035,269 75,137 19,110,406 77,397,144
90,495,806 338,622,585 14,805,626 443,924,017  1,797,892,268
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rates, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general
and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

(a)

(b)

(c)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Price risk

The Bank managed its risk of unfavourable changes of prices of its investment by reviewing the monthly fund performance
report.

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank mainly transact in US$, which is the functional currency of the Bank. The Bank do not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Interest margins may increase or decrease due to unexpected movements in rates. Management regularly

monitors any mismatch of interest rate repricing undertaken.

The table below summarises the exposures of the Bank to interest rate risk. The assets and liabilities at carrying amount
are categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.2 Market risk (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

2016

Financial assets

Cash on hand

Balances with the
Central Bank

Balances and

placements with
banks and other

financial
institutions

Loans and
advances to
customers

Other assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits from

banks and other

financial
institutions

Deposits from
customers

Other liabilities

Total interest rate
repricing gap

- us$

- In KHR’000
equivalent

pace:134

Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to5 Over Non-Interest
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
uss uss uss uss uss uss uss
6,256,945 6,256,945
85,437,721 85,437,721
43,751,265 35,000,000 37,000,000 115,751,265
8,295,212 9,163,439 36,572,328 50,378,179 243,166,515 347,575,673
1,873,213 562,163 2,435,376
139,357,411 44,163,439 73,572,328 50,378,179 243,166,515 6,819,108 557,456,980
(114,000,000)  (53,026,250) (61,000,000) (3,341,234)  (231,367,484)
(25,774,383)  (41,620,107) (115,474,609)  (22,963,381) (91,439,041)  (297,271,521)
(1,890,603) (3,682,346) (5,572,949)
(141,664,986)  (94,646,357) (176,474,609)  (22,963,381) (98,462,621)  (534,211,954)
(2,307,575)  (50,482,918) (102,902,281) 27,414,798 243,166,515  (91,643,513) 23,245,026
(9,315,680) (203,799,540) (415,416,508) 110,673,539 981,663,221 (369,964,862) 93,840,170
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.2

Market risk (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

2015
Financial assets
Cash on hand

Balances with the
Central Bank

Balances and
placements with
banks and other
financial
institutions

Loans and
advances to
customers

Other assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits from
banks and other
financial
institutions

Deposits from
customers

Other liabilities

Total interest rate

repricing gap

- us$

- In KHR’000
equivalent

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to5 Over Non-Interest

1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
uss uss uss uss uss uss uss
3,805,590 3,805,590

56,874,305 56,874,305
18,495,806 46,000,000 26,000,000 90,495,806
5,180,759 9,382,132 40,053,420 32,742,559 251,263,715 338,622,585
14,543,478 19,386 87,810 75,600 79,352 14,805,626
95,094,348 55,382,132 66,072,806 32,830,369 251,339,315 3,884,942 504,603,912
(164,726,266) (44,000,000) (51,000,000) (2,813,061) (262,539,327)
(17,542,571)  (50,196,837)  (93,373,804) (752,510) (54,333,783) (216,199,505)
(3,207,080) (2,410,613) (5,617,693)
(185,475,917)  (94,196,837) (144,373,804) (752,510) (59,557,457) (484,356,525)
(90,381,569)  (38,814,705) (78,300,998) 32,077,859 251,339,315  (55,672,515) 20,247,387
(366,045,355)  (157,199,555)  (317,119,042) 129,915,329 1,017,924,226 (225,473,686) 82,001,917

pace:135
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
25.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank are unable to meet their obligations when they fall due as a result of customer deposits
being withdrawn, cash requirements from contractual commitments, or other cash outflows.

(a) Liquidity risk management process

The management monitors balance sheet liquidity and manages the concentration and maturity profile of deposits as well
as the movements of main depositors and projection of their withdrawals.

(b) Funding approach
The main sources of funding of the Bank are from shareholder’s paid-up capital and deposits from banks, other financial
institutions and customers. The sources of funding are reviewed daily through management’s review of maturity profile of
term deposits.

(c) Non-derivative cash flows

The table below presents the undiscounted cash flows arising from financial assets and liabilities and commitments of the
Bank based on the remaining contractual maturities as at the balance sheet date.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.3

(c)

RHB INDOCHINA BANK

Liquidity risk (continued)

Non-derivative cash flows (continued)

2016
Financial liabilities

Deposits from
banks and other
financial
institutions

Deposits from
customers

Other liabilities

Total financial
assets

Net liquidity gap

In KHR’000
equivalent

2015
Financial liabilities

Deposits from
banks and other
financial
institutions

Deposits from
customers

Other liabilities

Total financial
assets

Net liquidity gap

In KHR’000
equivalent

AR / 2016

Up to 1to3 3 to 12 1to5 Over
1 month months months years 5 years Total
uss$ uss uss uss$ uss uss

(117,360,538)

(117,280,607)
(5,572,949)

(53,165,617)

(41,915,534)

(61,742,647)

(118,502,094)

(24,727,675)

(232,268,802)

(302,425,910)
(5,572,949)

(240,214,094)

(95,081,151)

(180,244,741)

(24,727,675)

(540,267,661)

150,976,415 53,595,665 110,924,596 170,457,040 281,166,234 767,119,950
(89,237,679)  (41,485,486)  (69,320,145) 145,729,365 281,166,234 226,852,289
(360,252,510) (167,476,907) (279,845,425) 588,309,446 1,135,068,087 915,802,691
(167,726,534)  (44,142,147)  (51,409,308) (263,277,989)
(71,804,833)  (50,483,333)  (95,992,979) (786,063) (219,067,208)
(5,617,693) (5,617,693)

(245,149,060)  (94,625,480) (147,402,287) (786,063) (487,962,890)
101,449,404 60,044,844 83,937,240 92,007,126 272,084,379 609,522,993
(143,699,656)  (34,580,636)  (63,465,047) 91,221,063 272,084,379 121,560,103
(581,983,608) (140,051,576) (257,033,442) 369,445,304 1,101,941,735 492,318,413
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.4 Operational risk

25.5

PaGe:138

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external
events. This includes legal, compliance, accounting and fraud risk.

The Bank has estahlished policies and procedures to provide guidance to the key operating units on the risk governance structure
and baseline internal controls necessary to identify, assess, monitor and control their operational risks. Internal control policies
and measures that have been implemented including the establishment of signing authorities, defining system parameter controls,
streamlining procedures and documentation ensuring compliance with regulatory and legal requirements. The policies and
procedures are reviewed periodically, taking into account the business objectives and strategies of the Bank as well as regulatory
requirements.

The internal audit function provides independent assessment of the adequacy of the internal control policies and procedures of
the Bank to mitigate risk associated with operational activities. Any findings arising from the audit and review will be escalated
to the senior management of the Bank and the Audit Committees of the Bank and of the parent company.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

As at the interim balance sheet date, the fair values of financial instruments of the Bank approximate their carrying amounts.
The estimated fair values are based on the following methodologies and assumptions:

(i) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

The fair values of balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions with maturity of less than one year
approximate their carrying amounts.

(ii) Loans and advances to customers

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of less than one year, the carrying amounts are generally reasonable
estimates of their fair values.

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of one year and above, fair values are estimated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows using the prevailing market rates of loans with similar credit risks and maturities.

(iii)  Deposits from banks, other financial institutions and customers
The fair values of deposits payable on demand (current and savings accounts), or deposits with remaining maturity of less
than one year are estimated to approximate their carrying amounts. The fair values of deposits with remaining maturity of
more than one year are estimated based on discounted cash flows using prevailing market rates for similar deposits from
banks, other financial institutions and customers.

(iv)  Other financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities are assumed to approximate their fair values as these items
are not materially sensitive to the shift in market interest rates.
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25.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

25.6 Capital management
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the balance sheet, are:
To comply with the capital requirement set by the Central Bank;

+ To safeguard the ability of the Bank to continue as a going concern so that it can provide returns to its shareholder and
benefits for other stakeholders; and

+ To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of business.

The Central Bank requires all commercial banks to i) hold a minimum capital requirement, ii) maintain the Bank’s net worth equal
at least to the minimum capital and iii) comply with solvency and liquidity ratios.

The table below summarises the composition of the Bank’s regulatory capital:

2016 2015
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
Tier 1 capital
Share capital 67,000,000 270,479,000 67,000,000 271,350,000
Retained earnings 17,446,669 70,432,203 10,749,262 43,534,511
Less: Intangible assets (295,308) (1,192,158) (353,150) (1,430,258)
Less: Loans to management - (143,938) (582,949)
84,151,361 339,719,045 77,252,174 312,871,304
Tier 2 complementary capital
General provision (1%) 3,447,304 13,916,766 3,359,494 13,605,951
Less: Equity participations in banking
and financial institutions (25,000) (100,925) (25,000) (101,250)
87,573,665 353,534,886 80,586,668 326,376,005

The National Bank of Cambodia issued a Prakas No. B7-016-117, dated 22 March 2016, on “new minimum registered capital
requirement for banks and financial institutions”. It requires that commercial banks being a local entity or a subsidiary of foreign
bank must have a minimum registered capital of at least KHR 300 bhillion (equivalent to US$75 million). The Prakas allows
commercial banks to increase its capital to meet the new minimum registered capital requirement within 2 years from the date
this Prakas.

On 16 June 2016, the Central Bank issued an instruction on the implementation of its Prakas No. B7-016-117, dated 22 March 2016,
on “new minimum registered capital requirement for banks and financial institutions”. The Instruction requires the banks to
increase the additional capital at least 50% of the amount to fulfil the minimum registered capital by end of March 2017 and the
remaining amount by 22 March 2018.

The Bank got approvals from the Board of Directors on 30 November 2016 and the Central Bank approved the capital injection
plan of US$4 million in January 2017 for meeting the additional capital requirement by 31 March 2017.

RHB INDOCHINA BANK AR / 2016
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SnjfsAL
PNGIM AR 6,256,945 25,259,287 3,805,590 15,412,640
FUYRAJISTE IR MU 4 146,491,301  591,385382 112,359,292 455,055,133
ruwaf ShmahamarsiaomiSna ansuiimiamhg 5 115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014
RANAIS SHUNUASHAGHS 6 347,575,673 1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469
[#njruAyIgg 7 2,931,117 11,832,919 15,241,270 61,727,142
NSNSNIFNjrURAY 20(A) 637,890 2,575,162 151,520 613,656
(¢ njeonyHd 8 295,308 1,192,158 353,150 1,430,258
(g njeubfa Snuimi 9 2,955,017 11,929,404 2,914,540 11,803,887
SNy 622,894,516  2,514,625161 563,943,753  2,283,972,199
inpn Shgnns
s
[mAvIivesn M S ansuiiminnig 10 231,367,484 934,030,533 262,539,327 1,063,284,274
[MAUNIvHASNS 11 297,271,520 1,200,085,126 ~ 216,199,505 875,607,995
NSIG{MAGIANMANE) 20(2) 1,610,398 6,501,177 1,722,942 6,977,915
Ganugg 12 8,198,445 33,097,122 5,732,717 23,217,504
SR 538,447,847 2,173,713,958 486,194,491 1,969,087,688
Hins
Iiugs 13 67,000,000 270,479,000 ~ 67,000,000 271,350,000
GINNMIANga 17,446,669 70,432,203 10,749,262 43,534,511
HUGS AU 84,446,669 340,911,203 77,749,262 314,884,511
NN SHELnSA 622,894,516  2,514,625,161 563,943,753  2,283,972,199
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GANMITMA 14 32,740,161 132,172,030 = 24,494,670 99,203,414
Samwmiima 15 (14,548,943)  (58,734,083) (9,799,719)  (39,688,862)
unNMijmafg 18,191,218 73,437,947 14,694,951 59,514,552
Sanmuty s SuAtisdiang 16 2,561,002 10,338,765 2,994,301 12,126,919
Samuignus Shatgitnan (7.811) (31,533) (16,316) (66,080)
ﬁnunnjigmjnj stlﬁi]jiiﬁﬂﬁﬂiﬁjlg 2,553,191 10,307,232 2,977,985 12,060,839
AN AUAMIGRY 183,267 739,849 151,750 614,588
UNjERERMIAI 20,927,676  84,485208 17,824,686 72,189,979
GAMwygin 17 (3,376,220)  (13,629,800)  (3,448,087)  (13,964,752)
Samuingas(gnjrogld Shuimi Shiruedgnjrunyngd 18 (1,035,209) (4,179,139)  (1,044,770) (4,231,319)
Samuwgrel Shdnmuwipiuimi 19 (3,012,420)  (12,161,140)  (2,500,055)  (10,125,223)
GiNNMESManEAIMSTSANNSISMA 13,503,827 54,514,949 10,831,774 43,868,685
AITMSGSRAN NS MAUH 6 (5,078,809)  (20,503,152)  (2,823,668)  (11,435,855)
GiNNMySuENgIGjmaginnm 8,425,018 34,011,797 8,008,106 32,432,830
SamuwngIs{masnnm 20(#) (1,727,611)  (6,974,365) (2,137,283)  (8,655,996)
dinnmgig 6,697,407 27,037,432 5,870,823 23,776,834
tunivnislgjjuinsisiuas asmi 6,697,407 27,037,432 5,870,823 23,776,834
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MivtAsIiugs 15,000,000 15,000,000
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REEOHRINI T 271,350,000 43,534,511 314,884,511
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. 2016 2015
nfln
1 = 1 = 1
RIS ANiNiLia méilns  gnimisia msii]ns
MUANGMfiAgmNjIRuE
FNG{MATS A AudmMI 21 12,055,482 48,667,981 57,532,844 233,008,018
MITMANS§GrU 32,906,597 132,843,932 24,494,670 99,203,414
MM AM S (13,854,444)  (55,930,390) (9,799,719)  (39,688,862)
nSIG{MASIANMMSUH (2,326,525) (9,392,181)  (1,962,504) (7,948,141)
PNG{MAMSAuRgMN{UAvAMI 28,781,110 116,189,342 70,265,291 284,574,429
Lu S
l'l.ii.l'liﬁ]'lﬁL nll nisiun
misms
- (g njrunyHD 8 (45,935) (185,440) (137,108) (555,287)
- g NjruYlR éhﬁ?@i 9 (979,745) (3,955,231) (657,320) (2,662,146)
WnaphputisyAEs 12,500,000 50,462,500 -
ENG{MAMSEANMINUA{E njeuy]l ShuTmi 14,800 59,748 23,473 95,066
ENGIMAR gMSH/(Msigh)uaymniSng 11,489,120 46,381,577 (770,955) (3.122,367)
MURANG{MnfifsAymNwiGss
anGmAmsAmividsiiugs - 15,000,000 60,750,000
PNG{M AN GMSAUAYEM AWMU S - 15,000,000 60,750,000
niNfiSGUANG{MA SHAND{MAABELAIS 40,270,230 162,570,919 84,494,336 342,202,062
ENGIMA ShenGimAtuuy Il sg 125,175,701 506,961,590 40,681,365 165,776,562
g fAmigg ot - (1,627,286) - (1,017,034)
AND{MA SHANGMAAEELGHE 22 165,445,931  667,905223 125175701 506,961,500
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4.  msgnjislanmianm

2016 2015
[N msiij  Ggnninisia msiijns
ANNEGIg 81,790,980 330,190,186 53,960,362 218,539,467
ANSMmEas 597,199 2,410,892 420,115 1,701,466
Lmﬁﬁgmmmm?tﬁaqs 6,700,000 27,047,900 6,700,000 27,135,000
146,491,301 591,385,382 112,359,292 455,055,133

() SSuji§imalng
¢SUENMANATAN ¢ SUBRHUJUIW [ U {AIM SANNSIMUH{M8% (2015 2 8%) IS{MAUINIUIHATES th{m AL
§1112.50% (2015 2 12.50%) IS{MAvIRIUAHASEStSWIANIfI1 ¢SUBIMANAT 4.5% (2015 $ 4.5%) IS{mA
urivasHASEsthySwianmm o AmAI) U ¢gumsmiima W esuBIMANAGa%Ig)A Shgsuipimag
fgisimaviivesafSnsthimau M SmMIImATe

(2) [mangnmsnmiduss
IR M B UM A8 [7-01-136(0.A. GG §15 125N 512001 IGMINM WG MiAAM U B3 A{MARY M SGIiugs

AgieineImi SHiAanNsuUiimia AYNMAGSS 10% ISIdu¢sG umMISIGImiAAMuT [MAnY IS Sniai
L L] o =] o n o 1 1 w N n
v}

NI AN R UM IV TSI NG

(A) BUBHMGHMHIWS (NCDS)

YUIUAIS: MGHMFIMS MIGNIMi Shnimigjhg1 NCDs timainu wmsmuudansd fivpuliidywg
NWHISHMIIMARIGA  1.70% 1§51 3.99% qhigmgﬁ ShyrupmmAagaEEia  momsmuiani
Ao uitA{miywie ywShH{mmMi{ma %% SIBOR 1 YU{UAMGHMFINS mnmﬂ‘imsmﬁmmﬁﬁgmsyémmﬁ?m
§am0t’nﬁm1§muqﬁ;sﬂqh@@mgmmmm

YUUAMGEMINSIun Mt sSgsFaimn 3,049,542 i nNiHILTA (§1201532,493,828 H ANIHNIHTA) {RIMS
mfmignjumisnoiwinuiie vptoyjasingusivaigs isinmminnm fagfiviy §31 feg gi2ote
nmiSs s msimesugjnsimiusisligjus

st 5 s § dagisem imuminAdimiE 2016 ¢ii: 213



ANNARIGIImEmin;

N UEnmegig§31 feg 52016

—

min

4.  msgnjislasmianm (a)

() Hjmmijmn

annfoig Suannimaad dtmann§inudsnsmiimaT Aa{ivmuuTiGeMNaa M (MARYUMSIINEES
SneSUENMANAGEGUMSHIMMIIMAUGIR G NRI{MYS
2016 2015
¢sulEIMANAY 0.08% 0.08%
(MAREUMSUNIAYES 0.08% 0.08%
YUU{RTHUMGEMEims 0.54% - 0.98% 0.29% - 0.99%
5.  msunnj Sumimajmaislasm SjRcansiminigin
2016 2015
Hnnimisin méiijn inniMiEin méii)
AN AuIRnsmuRnNg () 88,000,000 355,256,000 84,000,000 340,200,000
115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014

() NAUAANS{MAUINM SMUANNAFNHES ISMUANNFIW INUYWE SHGUMSMI{MA §ueiI{mys

2016 2015

ann{mavimsmuAnng 1.10% - 5.20% 1.00% - 4.60%
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6.  ANNSIS Si{iiS1SHATES

(A) IMAmMB{EASANNSISSii{isIs

RANAISHISMIUANNS
snnAs§mye
AANAISFMmuNswg
RANASIn;us
AANAISEMUNSWSIVEIUF LA
RANAISE My ivasyE o

sufiuipRnnestig)enta
fnn@sSnynuNsHASsH

AIMSHSHNNFISAUNS
aSimsnshanna

ATMESES §IF]

ANNSISSiitii|iis1SHATHS IS

(2) AIIMSHSANNSISTALS]

piimsnsIdug
UlBUBUSTMSES ARG

g fimigy Sty

AIIMSGSGIE

st 5 s § dagisem imwminfdiigig 2016

2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiMiEin msiijns
265,441,192 1,071,586,092 260,688,872 1,055,789,934
29,223,480 117,975,189 24,935,527 100,988,885
24,532 99,036 7,277 29,470
59,965,411 242,080,364 55,826,204 226,096,126
199,134 803,904 130,122 526,994
3,068,612 12,387,986 2,468,563 9,997,679

166,101 670,550 g

358,088,462 1,445,603,121 344,056,565 1,393,429,088
(7,065,485) (28,523,363) (2,074,486) (8,401,668)
(3,447,304) (13,916,766) (3,359,494) (13,605,951)
347,575,673 1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469

2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiiin msiijns
5,433,980 22,007,619 2,610,312 10,637,021
5,078,809 20,503,152 2,823,668 11,435,855
- (70,642) - (65,257)
10,512,789 42,440,129 5,433,980 22,077,619
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ANNSIS Siftiijiis1SHnGnS (i)

ImamuhinAimiannss

RANAISHYM
IS MM S
Eaahinis
fana WSy
HISMIM S
fsan@smu i
HISMIM S
RANAIS Ui
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fnnAIs AU

HISAUEIRN

(i) TMAmMBIMSALGANSS
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29I

2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiMiEin msiijns
344,711,945 1,391,602,122 335,949,435 1,360,595,208

18,445 74,462 =

4,522,303 18,256,537 5,113,440 20,709,434
1,909,721 7,709,544 415,229 1,681,678
756,352 3,053,393 1,480,849 5,997,437
6,169,696 24,907,063 1,097,612 4,445,331
358,088,462 1,445,603,121 344,056,565 1,393,429,088

2016 2015
HnniiEin msiijns HnniiEin msiijns
38,658,372 156,063,848 30,445,538 123,304,429
319,430,090 1,289,539,273 313,611,027 1,270,124,659
358,088,462 1,445,603,121 344,056,565 1,393,429,088
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6.  ANNSIS Siii{iiSISHATES ()

(i) Hjmmimn

AANAS SLunuASHASES §UMSHIMMIIMAUEIR §EARIMYs3

HANASHISMUANNE

RANASIN U

7. [SnjRsAHiGi

MI{MAT UG GU
i MIgMA RN

AUMARGRIFGIU

{MANSANN{ETF G U

AN A G N0 I

Ln&msmh SHMA (AnNHegng 24)

0§19

NSTENJUAEINNINNHA (RinNsiinunGwaR ¢jUvATM

2016 2015
7.50% - 15.25% 8.00% - 14.00%
8.00% - 12.50% 8.00% - 12.00%
2016 2015

Hnniiin msiijns B msiijn

4,364,456 17,619,309 2,519,917 10,205,664

(2,491,243) (10,057,148) (480,267) (1,945,081)

1,873,213 7,562,161 2,039,650 8,260,583

140,452 567,005 54,352 220,126

396,711 1,601,522 186,624 755,827

130,099 525,210 278,542 1,128,095

108,248 436,997 115,448 467,564

53,000 213,960 12,500,000 50,625,000

229,394 926,064 66,654 269,947

2,931,117 11,832,919 15,241,270 61,727,142

888 3744735 AniMIEIA AAFHSaMmigrumiun i 8hgigedisi

Aywmwinmeg)

st 5 s § dagisem imwminfdiigig 2016
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8.  [smjfsAHid

nawmsugasi{gnjrunysd innjsnsmmianayiianéi msgsnnmys

7

2016 2015
HnniNisia fnniMmisin
iy
iug) 1,199,559 1,062,451
uigy 45,935 137,108
HAMGE) 1,245,494 1,199,559
iR
iug) 846,409 691,498
inues 103,777 154,911
HnMGE) 950,186 846,409
RIS 295,308 353,150
suByuSnmeanu 1,192,158 1,430,258
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9.  (smjisisjn Siuign

NS UEATN{FNjY[RShUTMI BIsguanmys

it nig uigi Ay Si i
= =3 = 1 o =)
{Snjtini L vimim nljSi UNSLIS ]
NI [snjuns  Gnninisian  Goninisian  goninisian  Eoninisin
2016
igifly
AntfiuigGot feuAn §12016 2,866,885 2,051,176 447,194 1,202,787 483,020 7,051,062
migm 506,782 186,839 73,798 111,086 101,240 979,745
MIRITIG - - - - (36,200) (36,200)
Anifviy§31 e gi2016 3,373,667 2,238,015 520,992 1,313,873 548,060 7,994,607
insnisigs
Antfiuig§or feuAn 512016 1,488,054 1,317,066 216,130 872,399 242,873 4,136,522
inueg 328,935 271,209 61,484 182,832 86,972 931,432
MIRUAIGM - - - - (28,364) (28,364)
Anfiuig§st feng §i2016 1,816,989 1,588,275 277,614 1,055,231 301,481 5,039,590
- o
GRS 1,556,678 649,740 243,378 258,642 246,579 2,955,017
RIS, 6,284,309 2,623,000 982,517 1,044,138 995,440 11,929,404
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9. [SHjfsAHil

¢ni:220

miininsy uigi Ay Si wimi
= =3 = 1 o =)
{Snjtini L vimimi nljSi WNSLg ]
NI [snjuns  Gnninisian  Goninisian  goninisian  Eoninisin
2015
igifly
AntfiuigGot feuAn §12016 2,856,785 1,618,221 428,751 1,179,295 358,990 6,442,042
migm 10,100 432,955 18,443 23,492 172,330 657,320
MIUALIG (48,300) (48,300)
Anifviy§s1 e gi2016 2,866,885 2,051,176 447,194 1,202,787 483,020 7,051,062
insaisigs
Anifvigfot faunn gi2016 1,201,620 1,046,903 163,580 676,786 195,868 3,284,757
fuel 286,434 270,163 52,550 195,613 85,099 889,859
MIRUAIGM (38,094) (38,094)
Aniviy§31 e 512016 1,488,054 1,317,066 216,130 872,399 242,873 4,136,522
AiGeuing 1,378,831 734,110 231,064 330,388 240,147 2,914,540
EERT IS 5,584,266 2,973,146 935,809 1,338,071 972,595 11,803,887
10. |maviffisRimsIm SijficanS i
2016 2015
Hnnimisin méii]ns inNiiEia msii]ns
Aann8oGig 2,628,331 10,610,572 2,491,595 10,090,960
ann8{mans] 712,903 2,877,990 321,466 1,301,937
ann{mAvImsmuAnns 228,026,250 920,541,971 259,726,266 1,051,891,377
231,367,484 934,030,533 262,539,327 1,063,284,274

miigiRS{UAunwEigimn
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10. [mauifjisrimsai Sujicansdimiaigi (a)

AnivmuuTigemnianmi (MAvIITAESI M SRR anSUIIMIRIHN Y ¢FUMSHIMMIIMAUEIF §EANIMY

inwigargiiugenn Shpaefwinn 1 annSmAvIHnSMUANNS ISIWw: N UYWE 1
2016 2015
ANNEGIS ms ;s
AANS{MAS] ms ms
ann{mAvimsmuAnns 1.10% - 2.75% 0.65% - 3.25%
11.  |mauifiiuainds
2016 2015
= 1 = 1
HnNiMmisia méii)n inniMmisin méii)n
Aandnig 53,777,712 217,100,623 26,259,705 106,351,805
AandmaAns 37,661,329 152,038,785 28,074,078 113,700,016
AANEMATIRB SMUARNS 205,832,479 830,945,718 161,865,722 655,556,174
297,271,520 1,200,085,126 216,199,505 875,607,995

-4 B
KR 5 6548 B gagesam

AR{AYM UG $MNAF M

AANSGIS
anng{mheus]
ANNS{MAUINTSMUANNG

imuminfigigig 2016

al o

i I s MM iy wa

P =3

NU{MAUIN S

2.00% - 5.75%

2016 2015
0.88% - 2.08% ;s
1.25% 1.50%

2.00% - 6.00%

[MAvIIvaERImE fh{fansUiMInMhg  ¢gUMSHMMIIMAUSIFIHEOnImY

fenn  ShjuAgdwinn wmsMymMuywEatuniaimaviNGss
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12. [mavijisRimsiai SijRcanswiiaiEi

MIgm AR

[mAlN SR
YIUUJASURUHNUMARA
ngmagAfiun
AANSHARANN
ngimAgingpuh

M9 (%)

—

min

2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiMiEin msiijns
4,381,846 17,689,512 3,687,347 14,933,755
792,000 3,197,304 806,400 3,265,920
597,199 2,410,892 420,115 1,701,466
112,883 455,709 94,424 382,417
106,695 430,728 99,655 403,603
21,370 86,271 20,600 83,430
2,186,452 8,826,706 604,176 2,446,913
8,198,445 33,097,122 5,732,717 23,217,504

() jsumuandanumhg GAMAGss 9,06 n, maAmEANIEIBTA Athmigiimadimpress inuSn{pimag

annSmAuIRHEASESAnNG

nUBANNIGFRNH FimsiinmEh{pig RaFIWINUEWE IMWInmGsg 9

13. iiluss
2016 2015
matfs matis
= 1 = 1
(000)  ijnAimisia msiijns (000)  ijnAimiEia msii]ns
ERR ) 67,000 67,000,000 271,350,000 52,000 52,000,000 211,900,000
MIVMUIHEES 15000 15,000,000 60,750,000
PIIH UM AT (871,000) (1,300,000)
SELNUctaliEy 67,000 67,000,000 270,479,000 67,000 67,000,000 271,350,000
Anivig§st feg gi2ote tivgsidumsugdniveinsimi medgsbamnsgnnimiuia ginezansismadis
nymiduesalgmia 1gnimIsiAghgwmavisT numadisidumsIiomuipwanEy (pimsusda 8§h
MSUR AT
$iii: 222 misgipSpavinwiigimn - i@ismiidgmuiatis



14. GNONA@A

SanumifmAYais

AANAIS ShulUAISHASHS

aiwa ] Samihamasinsim 8
(A ansulimin g

EUHR ST G NI M S

YIUUHIGUMGEMmEGIms

15. GNMWMijmi

Samwmigmarglngs
AnNS{MAvIRTSMUANNG
AANSaus]

AANSTIS

16. unpniignin Stinijsiiuan

Al INIMIBANe'S
AlEIdnani
AHURUAGAISNRANAS
I Y

st 5 s § dagisem imwminfdiigig 2016

2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiMiEin msiijns
30,382,849 122,655,561 22,616,731 91,597,761
2,290,414 9,246,401 1,836,591 7,438,193
56,717 228,967 15,614 63,237
10,181 41,101 25,734 104,223
32,740,161 132,172,030 24,494,670 99,203,414
2016 2015
HnNiiin méiijns HnNiMiEin msiijns
14,060,003 56,760,232 9,433,368 38,205,140
363,806 1,468,685 352,898 1,429,237
125,134 505,166 13,453 54,485
14,548,943 58,734,083 9,799,719 39,688,862
2016 2015
HnNiMiin méii]ns HnNiiEin msiijns
1,157,790 4,673,998 1,783,572 7,223,467
426,840 1,723,153 390,665 1,582,192
186,539 753,058 159,044 644,128
789,833 3,188,556 661,020 2,677,132
2,561,002 10,338,765 2,994,301 12,126,919
§0i1: 223
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mmmnmagﬁg 3121 512016

17. GNMWLEGA

(A Saimany

=

[maAnns SamAasaiaty

HAU NG S N U g g

18. GnmuiLAsgNjRL)H Suuim SuinasjgnjangHd

inurs{gnjeo]l Shuimi (Anndamng)

a

inurs(gnjeuAyHgd (Fnndaimnis)

P

9ﬁ:22l|

| 2 ]
—_—

i@ wmini; n

2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiMiEin msiijns
2,566,632 10,361,493 2,346,380 9,502,839
553,880 2,236,014 851,049 3,446,748
255,708 1,032,293 250,658 1,015,165
3,376,220 13,629,800 3,448,087 13,964,752

2016 2015
HnNiMiin msii]ns HnNiMiin msiijns
931,432 3,760,191 889,859 3,603,929
103,777 418,948 154,911 627,390
1,035,209 4,179,139 1,044,770 4,231,319

miigiRS{UAunwEigimn
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19. GNMWIHNN SHEAMUs{ERuEMI

2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiMiEin msiijns
AL UHEN 618,632 2,497,417 522,572 2,116,417
migeuniu Samity ¢ 337,778 1,363,610 341,972 1,384,987
mitmeny 5pi Samigjonp 319,090 1,288,166 134,694 545,511
AlEENT 260,459 1,051,473 238,467 965,791
fUgne 224,612 906,759 177,773 719,981
§A-1fn 222,071 896,501 201,154 814,674
NI 146,363 590,867 119,288 483,116
FURIMILN RS SRMITm Ny 135,731 547,946 101,281 410,188
minfiigjniing 120,773 487,561 84,504 342,241
mMi¢HEsh 98,056 395,852 93,678 379,396
unswg Sudamuwdinnimiunsuws 89,852 362,733 98,063 397,155
mian ShngMmANgmg 85,017 343,214 100,676 407,738
Alpiv ﬁjLﬁaLﬁ ApATIY 78,200 315,693 79,682 322,712
Samwgatum Shdamwmangiginy 68,870 278,028 44,916 181,910
AU U AYM NG 42,053 169,768 39,209 158,796
Al IINGSI 30,221 122,002 28,689 116,190
AIGAGAIGgHI 16,356 66,029 18,368 74,390
GAMUINj g 118,286 477,521 75,069 304,030
3,012,420 12,161,140 2,500,055 10,125,223

(M) NSNSNI{FNjRIAY
NgASNILE NjrunY BRoRNINgNSNIRIMSIMAGE MM

2016 2015
BN méijjns i msiijn
NSNSNI{FNjeUAY 716,595 2,892,894 272,337 1,102,965
Ganungnsni (78,705) (317,732) (120,817) (489,309)
637,890 2,575,162 151,520 613,656

st 5 s § dagisem imuminAdimiE 2016 §ii: 225
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20. ng(a

.

~

UIBUEUNSNSNIFNJAIRYEIG MISHEONIMYS

2016 2015
[N msijjns [N méijjns
Y E ﬂJ'J[EHHEI 151,520 613,656 =
yentglnim MR FG S T RS 486,370 1,963,476 151,520 613,656
glaAmiggSwan - (1,970) :
Y L’U’Jlﬁjiﬁ 637,890 2,575,162 151,520 613,656
UHBUBUNgNSNIENjUAY/(GAN) ARG MISHENRIMmY:
AilmSns insasnig)s
ANNSIS iSnjrsAi
L 1 = -
mauiigis] 8 1 RIfL
HnniMisin fnniMmisin Hnninisia
sig§ot fewnn 512015 : )
USAIF RN MIUMINNUGH U 272,337 (120,817) 151,520
siG§at fag gi2o15 272,337 (120,817) 151,520
UUEBMMe [ﬂ At} 1,102,965 (489,309) 613,656
sigot fzuAn §i2016 272,337 (120,817) 151,520
s a3t 19n §92016 716,595 (78,705) 637,890
P U NI U 2,892,894 (317,732) 2,575,162

9ﬁ:226
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20. ng(a)

(2)  SanungrGimASINM

2016 2015
HnNiMiLin msiijns HnNiMiEin msiijns
FUBANIIYE) 1,722,942 6,977,915 1,396,643 5,691,320
USARNET 2,213,981 8,937,841 2,288,803 9,269,652
ngIG{MAGIANMMSUH (2,326,525) (9,392,181) (1,962,504) (7,948,141)
g fimiygSwong - (22,398) - (34,916)
FBRAYGHE) 1,610,398 6,501,177 1,722,942 6,977,915
(m  SamwagrsimAsSInnm
2016 2015
Hnnimisin méii)n innimisin méii)n
SamungiG{mAasInnms
ASIG{MAGIANMANE] 2,213,981 8,937,841 2,288,803 9,269,652
NS (486,370) (1,963,476) (151,520) (613,656)
1,727,611 6,974,365 2,137,283 8,655,996

MIG AN AMINgHGMAGIANMIGUNSANNSMYHMA§MEGNT 20% JEMSANARNNNNIMWMIANUEU

HISHGNIMYe

2016 2015
HnNiMiin méii]ns HnNiMiEin msiijns
Sinmusuingimasinnm 8,425,018 34,011,797 8,008,106 32,432,830
N§ANNSIMBH]M 20% 1,685,004 6,802,361 1,601,621 6,486,566
nrutimaing angsing
GAMikUESMEMARNMUGNUNS 42,607 172,004 535,662 2,169,430
1,727,611 6,974,365 2,137,283 8,655,996

snmusngidmatinnm

HSINBMUGNUANIANSAYN BIMITISMaE
INANSIG{MAGIAN MM BH{20% IS{MASIANM

st 5 s § dagisem imwminfdiigig 2016

o

al*] hﬂ
MUNg YUNSHUJUTE1%"]

HO{MAGIANMENTing muHmywam fBugaimins
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—

min

21.  AmamsiiFujsauam

2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiMiEin msiijns

Sinnmysuing 8,425,018 34,011,797 8,008,106 32,432,830
Suinnys
irueggnjruyla Sautmi Snirusd(gnjruny

HiG(FnNHeuEINi18) 1,035,209 4,179,139 1,044,770 4,231,319
PITMSGSRANASMAUH (AN 6) 5,078,809 20,503,152 2,823,668 11,435,855
Sinmaminufiyg njeuyjl Shuimi (6,964) (28,114) (64,574) (261,524)
GANUMIIMAag g (18,191,218) (73,437,947) (14,694,951) (59,514,552)
gnuivimiysulpuuidugsuin (3,659,146) (14,771,973) (2,882,981) (11,676,072)
ulpuiguiugsuiu
B R ISTE MR MU (5,568,593) (22,480,410) (32,100,940) (130,008,807)
YUURLHUMGEMFins - 15,000,000 60,750,000
ugnng] SamiAmasinmiSngisans

CRbHE R (16,000,000) (64,592,000) 12,500,000 50,625,000
RANFS SUUNUAISHASNS (14,031,897) (56,646,768) (127,832,457) (517,721,451)
18 NjrUAYIH (356,284) (1,438,319) (811,381) (3.286,093)
maufivonsm Shficans

ERbh L (31,171,843) (125,840,730) 115,129,266 466,273,527
[MAvIRIUASHATNS 81,072,015 327,287,725 77,407,770 313,501,468
g g 1,771,230 7,150,456 1,123,567 4,550,446
ANumAmSjiauRmI 12,055,482 48,667,981 57,532,844 233,008,018

miigiRS{UAunwEigimn
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22, ANGjIA SHANGIMAREE

i tImutandisimwmMinn BuiEn G{MA AGIMA SRENG{MAIEY U JBH8:

>

mGLmﬁqmﬁ
fUERjISTEIMIA MU
(ANNHIEINI4) ¢
AANEGIS
aANSmaa
YUU{ATHUMGHMEInS
(mrudnnatie yanti)
FUEAN] SmihAmArsiasim 8
{Azanstiiminigng
anNfoig (AnNAEN 5)
AANSMAUINTMSMUAANG

al o

(Mmudnnadie yasmn)

23. npAISN Siwmmn

(A) AGEIRNASNIRANAS

Sinnasnnysinyusiiuds
MSHT{mey
USaRnNA S

ATERInjtk;

st 5 s § dagisem imwminfdiigig 2016

2016 2015
i méijjns BN msiijns
6,256,945 25,259,287 3,805,590 15,412,640
81,790,980 330,190,186 53,960,362 218,539,467
597,199 2,410,892 420,115 1,701,466
3,049,542 12,311,001 2,493,828 10,100,003
27,751,265 112,031,857 6,495,806 26,308,014
46,000,000 185,702,000 58,000,000 234,900,000
165,445,931 667,905,223 125,175,701 506,961,590
2016 2015

Hnnimisin méii)n innimisin méii)n

25,106,102 101,353,334 17,011,029 68,894,667

1,052,755 4,249,972 614,936 2,490,491

5,569,512 22,484,120 2,475,739 10,026,743

31,728,369 128,087,426 20,101,704 81,411,901

§ii: 229
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23. ngRISN Siwmmn (@)

(8) AGRISNARUSNUAURIHUBSHIGIUIGINIMS

HIAMINSAGUSNARUSNUAURSSMGUITIUMS GIM e MITUHMIMIUN B WIivaigs

GAMWAR I SNHUJUIMGIURINUH AR IMuAGsNaR U snud v

ARUSNHUJUIM SN UH ARTE U

24. [uAupmI SuRsERjMAMAIS

QSH‘IGE‘U‘U[G‘I FPUDISHIS G INIMYs

2016 2015
HnNiMiLin msiijns HnNiMiEin msiijns
707,048 2,854,353 590,732 2,392,465
1,412,099 5,700,644 1,528,534 6,190,563
679,446 2,742,924 536,163 2,171,459
2,798,593 11,297,921 2,655,429 10,754,487

(M mamang Suéfésh
¢AGSH BuMAMANSIVEITIMI MISHEONI{MYS
§mndsi | mAamniig
{Audisius RHB Bank Berhad
{nvdismamang (ABUIsFnHAISIghGINERvH SwhGImWw

URMGARANAUANINSY

suniapsidApAmuAnsivaImi funs g
mirsipebgains s mangigiSmaniiyganey

YRS s Sty

guneumda (panidadavasgmannihn

Arun
n

EN R )

9ﬁ1230

miigiRS{UAunwEigimn
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24. [wAupmI SuRsERMAMAIRS (7)

(8) Gamasmamamang sounng] Shiuivd

2016 2015

HnNiMiin méii]ns HnNiMiin msii]ns
SAjmntimajfusise

- (MAUIRTSMUuUANNG 134,000,000 540,958,000 179,000,000 724,950,000
- MI{MAIUA 358,389 1,446,816 430,921 1,745,231
134,358,389 542,404,816 179,430,921 726,695,231

2016 2015
HnNiMiLin msiijns HnNiiEin msiijns
- Gamwmigmh 3,742,145 15,107,039 2,126,240 8,611,272

2016 2015
Hnnimisin méii)n innimisin méii)n

SA{mmimnjuiis mAMAgs

- annfsig 113,016 456,246 7,086,634 28,700,868
- [MAUKAMSMUANNG 8,596,025 34,702,153 1,891,398 7,660,162
- MITMA{ATUD 88,716 358,146 83,416 337,835
8,797,757 35,516,545 9,061,448 36,698,865

2016 2015
Hnnimiin méii)n HnNiiEin méii)n
- Gamwmiima 291,766 1,177,859 1,039 4,208

- Sapruinatpanmiinns
HAGNSE[IA 250 1,009 1,500 6,075
st 5 s § sagﬁssam imwminfiiigig 2016 ¢ii: 231
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2016 2015
HnNiMiLin msiijns HnNiMiEin msiijns
GaimamamAngtma 27,304 110,226 12,500,000 50,625,000
Faimasyisutma 25,696 103,734 - -
53,000 213,960 12,500,000 50,625,000

st GAimAtuma

o

m
winpivhsaiminwmamang Sapud

(W)  AAMIUESYEMBARANAUAENANSY

fing Shipvuiswdma fdutoymanfsaSadamuwmjholdunnmimsuitga 1ol
S5

2016 2015
HnNiMiin msii]ns HnNiMiEin msii]ns
Lmﬁ[ﬁjfﬁﬁ ﬁLU[tIﬂtiSitD’ mmz 618,346 2,496,263 598,488 2,423,876
@) aamavspsiiapimu
2016 2015
[N msijjns HnNiiEin msijjns
78,200 315,693 79,682 322,712

AlpivssAsPApAmY

25. mijptijAHMEAtE

=33 0y

uRgmamtingivonnmipros§hmdwuiimimmnoywsss gom unldwsnnes tEAwdnpi (ums

foa)

mEAudwinn unEAwxmmigma tEAwaly

Shunffw gh;m mEAwwivimidmnninat
iMin8 ¢ayj8 (derivative financial instrument) EjLnUanmSnmmsmfnmmzs:m 167

§ii: 232

miigiRS{UAunwEigimn

i) ShunAwansmAMWwu T Miingimiamabsunusye
mﬁmmm’jﬁjmumﬁmhﬁmh:mimﬁfﬁgﬂ BMISSHI{mATguURIAN
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25-

mijAupUMSAWIG (7)
sungmnmtingivonmipoyihmEdwiimiansswigs jomunEdwsanas mEFwinpi gumnsunEAw

S
jiwdnn tnEdwsmmiima tnifwaly) ShmiAwmansimamwpun 1 mtiaguiiminmansiuovyeShumidw

[y

RINE mEdwpivfmidmeninaiduinanujsamagnimhimindingg onmissimasuninnuiimia

So tUj§ (derivative financial instrument) I3 j{AU{ANUN EAWUIMIRITATZRIR G

[gnjungtiimin s §AgsNIALj¢FUMSANGIMA Y{FNjUAYIIIMIAYWINNIG)H AHYMYWINIG)aT (§0]
wagdliminpimsnanamannas Saaanfpisgunnolisunuantma  gald wegygisianminame
ruuRupsinmm fu{Acansiimingn g snnasuitos Su{enjruny mjjirg)ac

Sansuiimin AmmagAgAgrusnanMIN N GIM A UF njeuAyuiim

pimsmanANMINN I Y

MIinytist

[a= BN W]

wRg)a Asgmnyngnig a1 sanudiigig
fgsuumAvifivaanms 8 (fians imigngns mavifiuasites

[mand Sudannurjigrg)a
2016 2015

HnNiMiein msiijns HnNiniLia msiijns
[SnjRIAYLATMIA
P GImMARnTE 6,256,945 25,259,287 3,805,590 15,412,640
FUH A NJISTE VMR My (%) 85,437,721 344,912,080 56,874,305 230,340,935
susan ShmindmarsinamiSnie
ANSUTIMIRIN Y 115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014
HANAIS SHUNUASHAGHS 347,575,673 1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469
(g njruAYIEj g 2,435,376 9,831,613 14,805,626 59,962,785

557,456,980 2,250,453,829 504,603,912 2,043,645,843
GnnsAiia
[mauivasEIm S{f s ansuiimizmi g 231,367,484 934,030,533 262,539,327 1,063,284,274
{mavtivesHAtns 297,271,520 1,200,085,126 216,199,505 875,607,995
Ganmugjhg 5,572,949 22,497,995 5,617,693 22,751,657

534,211,953 2,156,613,654 484,356,525 1,961,643,926
[SNjRSALIATMIARIS 23,245,027 93,840,175 20,247,387 82,001,917
() Ssntupumavifuigh Samangumsuididugsisianminama

st 5 s § ezag?mm imwminfiiigig 2016 ¢i: 233
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25. mijpUjARMSAWG (A7)

25.1 iMShwanns1s

mmidwinanys Amunidwidvunmusaimisnaviigaviiminidusisns ymatay §gpavesnimi §hifejenas
o fi

=5
Clo
5
=t
3
@
Die
Sey]
z
E
=
A
3
=
5
0
e
E
R
5
“
0

manGsiagimiguinnas Shunpas 8

mmidwsnnes  Amunfdwhmiaiagwangnmiingnnmi g ann: FuEn)us IS WEANNSIUAIZS
R {BH P E

() MINAHERUMSAWRANAS

HOMIMS TR UMINNIMEAWRANFISAIN (Core Credit Risk Policy) fdruipims]usigjidyjnam
SINNAAYMARRMIMINTIMMESWITAENMT MITSHANASFIMSHANUINWAYIEIANA S
msijusmnaistnlianu uaiasana it ntARGgpumun mudang Shugenn

a

areniuh SnAThishiymunasusnnasiiuinipime ShpugsHitns

nominmeHimangsmeivhisagn Fpasanes mamagAgHAIGASINNRANAS (loan originators) HATM A
RANFS (evaluators) SNA{BAMIHSBARNNSS (approving authorities)

]
A
3
=
-
o=
=5
=]
o)
)]
f4n])
e,
E
[2a)
=5
=
o'}
3
=
o3
(o5}
27}
']
B.
']
e
0
e,
=
ha/A
9
[p]
4
=
=4
-0
pu(i
%
0
e
E
9
[p]
o}
=
B

o usicneuEgmun

o
%
-
0
5
0
e
E
ha/A
5
“

S S N
argnfhgndimAmaaRts ugAgimAmiy Samuigamiing1 unifwis:pimspandgmuynusifud
wiwnpimspaSapgivimuos) umnm f
munanu famulawmiing (pimsusdarnwipsiapimmu

MEAWGHHINSTANASWESWINWEMIAAMU NMuNEAWRANASGIFGIMHAG GUBUMAREES

-t

HUG e i 10% ISy U RN AT IV AT T IUNN MY RS ANIS (UM ASIIS [57-06-226{1.A. 10 AT T STMIAAM U
A EIMIANENS{ATINUIANSIHSMARAUINGES 20% MutmSAwsnanAsgiFivesnnm s
miwivimithywingaegrunumanansfyws ShymnuSfphnigivinnmil midwsnnfnstaiy

Gs{atajirieuf 300% ISYURR NIEY IV EITRIMNIG ]

nomimsimasmuminn SamiEsigiiis IEMAvgwINiAWRANAS UM SMIABIGHAZIMA
maigumiGRana s fhynpansidunnmignie)d
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25. mijpUjARMSAWG (7)

25.1 iMSAWHEANSS ()

(#)

(W)

-4 B
KR 5 6548 B gagesam

INUMINNATTMSES Sifl“ﬁiijliﬁ "tj

mmmimssqslf@‘mﬁmirgﬁnmrig]

"_')?.

ANFs SnadTmsns HgtuMEUMasmMAnggsmsvnasigudnng
FUEINI2.6 IS8T WMIANUIIMIE T

muftamamaianas Shmafaiimsassnnasmavi pimsdanarnwinie by uiant

ispnnss ShunuesHASns Shammangiging)a-

IMEAWRANNSHAUINYSMIMSMUIFUMT UySMILIFSRANAS

mnngwmuis:  vinmitmSAwinnasHivivivinnmi hwdsAndigug

i UMIvIiSHANAS
g argjwa Grms{gnjaunganmnnami tSAwidumsuinmeansigareliniai

i fyruninag g Grmse
fgrugpmiigininnsis mSAwdansisufivinamégsAnpunisnpudnnsisidussmoinipmns
2016 2015
NI mSiilns  Gnainisia méii]ns
[SMjRIAE ARG
fUBANSumMIhA[mAIsTasImI
ShiAcansulimingi g 115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014
ANNAISRRUNUNSHAGHES 347,575,673  1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469
8 NjeuAyIgi g 2,435,376 9,831,613 14,805,626 59,962,785
465,762,314  1,880,282,462 443,924,017  1,797,892,268
isnjrsAbijplmniGnjmi
AGEISNIN Y 31,728,369 128,087,426 20,101,704 81,411,901
497,490,683  2,008,369,888 464,025,721  1,879,304,169

wrisilwnsugmannMilhsinmuwmattgiuaigsafigumm iiyjm

AmnidunGeguwRmsisigum

g miaanoIumiglium

o

NI ﬂijLﬂnﬂjn[ﬂj‘EﬁJ‘limS

tiji_i‘ﬂSntﬁﬁElﬂ?IS"l nﬁﬂiﬁfjjn[iﬁ

fsinum
(\l &

figommammiumis$uidanm Lmﬁ@”rsfﬁﬁnﬁﬁfimgj Shmivissnnesigtg fHunImiggrums

Bun:mi grusanasSaynpnsuAiusivaigs junsF iyl & mmmtﬁgmﬂ # Ny S gnwini

> o

nnish Lijn[ﬁmd:jtﬁL“ﬂ?lEjtﬁLﬂ x| Ujlﬁn[‘.ﬂ“ﬁﬁ“ﬁm anlgﬁjﬁﬁjnﬁl_ﬁ

~

imuminfigigig 2016

fgnAngaming
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ANNARIGIImEmin;

N UEnmegig§31 feg 52016

25. mijpUjARMSAWG (A7)

25.1 iMSAWHEANSS ()

—

min

(W) vn8AwRANNSHATINYSMIMSMUIALNT UESMIVIASRANAS (7)

ann:{AsEhIstIg)h gsmsugmaugmMiaLaH S1{F{FHMEAWRNNASITIEMITEL UAMUBANRANAS

Shunu s gjadaphaidanyjuimmuligoaimys

- {UHINN 99.99% (2015 $ 99.99%) ISHANFISENUN{UASIUAITIAN M SM N Wigu &

- M SERTENWHIEH AN AISUNRUEUY FUMIGN fnnes ShunuansysHidns

(1) ganmoRnNASISENjruRyUIimI

-3

RANAS SHYLUAS

Anpiumuviigeismnnggimi un8dwsnnasivnnmi mfaisnnasSaunpansaitts (iwds

mmum ymividssnn@ sy Suds

ANNSIS SHuijUsISAig:

B8u)rumANNG
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URSTMSHESRAANASMAUH) MISHENNIMYS

2016 2015
HnNiMiin méiln  Gnnimisin méiijns
341,283,086 1,377,759,818 332,589,941 1,346,989,257
4,386,634 17,708,841 4,960,037 20,088,151
1,905,953 7,694,333 1,072,607 4,344,061
347,575,673 1,403,162,992 338,622,585 1,371,421,469
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25. mijAujpUMSAWIG (7)

25.1 iMSAWHEANSS ()

(1) FANMARANASIS{ENjruAEUTIMIR (7)

suuR g Shmitaimarsinsimi S anstiminmng
mamaiiuug] Shmihamamssnm simsvamenimi §aif:ansviimigmng daivmuuiigemnng
UM MuUIasisMATIGIvAIZS MISHEMIMYS

2016 2015

NI mSiilns  Gnainisia méii]ns

AH{BISAINEMmS

1 q

HSIMIMAN i 88,155,520 355,883,834 84,226,359 341,116,754

ijpljuisasagms
[XESARARRIYD ﬂfﬂg 27,595,745 111,404,023 6,269,447 25,391,260
115,751,265 467,287,857 90,495,806 366,508,014

(g 0AYINNg
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Shimaay s IMuncHAEATmMS IMUE MM SN ARYE G GIM MIg UHMIMIUN At
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25. mijpiipHIMSAWTIEG ()

25.1 iMSAWHEANSS ()

(5) aanmasnnAsisinnes ShunjynsHASHS

() BHANAS SijU[iTU‘NS[uﬂjtﬂﬁj“ﬁﬂjnﬂﬂnﬁjh U[S‘HSB’LU aly

13

mimanfmymusanas Shynpasiiuyumuinnion Gigisswe:aly Aajivmuuiigemnngngjmi

(inwBSARIGIRUM UMIUIRSHANAISIGHI) BISHEAONIMYS

2016 2015
HnNiMiLia msiiln Gnninisia msii]ns
) AsmURNNGAsHS

-<30 g 3,272,843 13,212,467 1,815,394 7,352,346
-30 i < 60 [ 674,631 2,723,485 2,655,520 10,754,856
-60 I < 90 I3 574,829 2,320,585 644,756 2,611,263
4,522,303 18,256,537 5,115,670 20,718,465
iing ?ﬁISﬁS (135,669) (547,696) (155,633) (630,314)
4,386,634 17,708,841 4,960,037 20,088,151
fnnasiiuurumudnnauinsoly urniesig: GIgAsingoty Lm‘msmnmnmﬁjrnsnnnmsmﬁﬂ

fﬁm@ﬂgmimsmsmmnmm 1B (RiGASTMSES 3%

mgrganna s Shunpasiduna URABMIY0IY SSRIMSHAGARNGWEAIYINIE nmin
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25. mijpujARMEAwL

=231
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25.1 iMSAWHEANSS ()

niifl
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U)AmANN
-90 1 < 180 (3
-180 15 < 360 I3

- 108Ul 360 1Y

iine AIImMSHS

(®) MITUHATAUIM

o a

=

UIPUEINES:

IHUIMS R g A B ALY

2016 2015

i msiij Gnninisia msijjns
1,909,721 7,709,544 415,229 1,681,677
756,352 3,053,393 1,650,495 6,684,505
6,169,696 24,907,063 925,736 3,749,234
8,835,769 35,670,000 2,991,460 12,115,416
(6,929,816)  (27,975,667) (1,918,853) (7,771,355)
1,905,953 7,694,333 1,072,607 4,344,061
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25. mijAujpUMSAwIG (7)

25.1 iMSAWHEANSS ()

() Imamuigngsany

ntimamu§aInsIgauisma

b

ITISTRUIS UAYT MISHERIMYS

2016

fuHAN] SmithAimAsiosimi §n
{Aanstiiminigag

HANAS SHUNUNSHAGNS

18 njeunAIh g

suByIEhmea

2015

fuER] SamithAamarsiasimi 81
{Azanstiiminigag

HANAS SnumuAsHASNS

18 jrUAYI

suByIEnmea

9ﬁ:240

g Aapivmuiigemnnggmi tSwinnasivesnImi umandsiia

[BiSAIALN [IISAITiI RS S
KNI KNG HnniNiLia
88,155,520 27,595,745 115,751,265
347,575,673 347,575,673
2,435,376 2,435,376
438,166,569 27,595,745 465,762,314
1,768,878,439 111,404,023 1,880,282,462
84,226,359 6,269,447 90,495,806
338,622,585 338,622,585
2,305,626 12,500,000 14,805,626
425,154,570 18,769,447 443,924,017
1,721,876,008 76,016,260 1,797,892,268
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25. mijAujpUMSAWIG (7)

25.1 iMSAWHEANSS ()

(i) TMamuiyngMLn

g
2

MNRONMBIS: RUHNuNEA

-4 B
KR 5 6548 B gagesam

2016

iAansiinig
sunmens SimnSwins
NgmUAnts

ngmund

{f:ansdsiusuiiminmmg
AfmsignSnginyIALS

Dtk

imuminfigigig 2016

WHANRISIURIE I MIMBRTE NN A IO RN A AmY {pmsmtinglsmatig 1

nstfAngg Sii
1 1
miiin{mn
islammi
SiijAcANS  ANNS1SSi
uifia UnEss  [Snjaiay
it HAOHS il Al

HONIMiEiA  GONiNEIA  dniMiEin §nnisisin msiijns

115,751,265 3,283,736 720,200 119,755,201 483,451,746

43,280,370 139,718 43,420,088 175,286,895

52,947,955 187,175 53,135,130 214,506,520

28,355,874 70,713 28,426,587 114,758,132

26,651,820 198,188 26,850,008 108,393,482

23,779,910 73,206 23,853,116 96,295,029

33,053,369 119,304 33,172,673 133,918,081

30,782,433 97,963 30,880,396 124,664,159

5,492,090 33,283 5,525,373 22,305,931

3,051,345 8,797 3,060,142 12,353,793

18,884,143 469,226 19,353,369 78,129,551

21,127,369 57,047 21,184,416 85,521,487

23,299,693 86,134 23,385,827 94,408,584

1,314,586 3,510 1,318,096 5,321,154

32,270,980 170,912 32,441,892 130,967,918

115,751,265 347,575,673 2,435,376 465,762,314  1,880,282,462
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25. mijAujpUMSAwIG (7)

25.1 iMSAWHEANSS ()
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it HAOHS il Al

HONIMiEiA  GONiNEIA  dniMiEin §nnisisin msiijns

90,495,806 4,831,624 12,927,173 108,254,603 438,431,142

52,483,831 255,376 52,739,207 213,593,788

51,312,950 176,806 51,489,756 208,533,512

26,055,976 53,572 26,109,548 105,743,669

25,718,758 180,036 25,898,794 104,890,116

23,657,307 282,555 23,939,862 96,956,441

29,080,233 137,532 29,217,765 118,331,948

34,449,364 115,383 34,564,747 139,987,225

5,044,965 50,013 5,094,978 20,634,661

3,676,323 74,177 3,750,500 15,189,525

14,885,818 227,143 15,112,961 61,207,492

22,845,460 152,707 22,998,167 93,142,576

24,040,307 94,408 24,134,715 97,745,596

252,893 380 253,273 1,025,756

1,251,507 3,228 1,254,735 5,081,677

19,035,269 75,137 19,110,406 77,397,144

90,495,806 338,622,585 14,805,626 443,924,017  1,797,892,268
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25. mijpUjARMSAWG (A7)
25.2 imSAusSH}i (7)
(@)  UNSAWH{MMI{MA (&)
fisuns
1z 1312 31212 1-5 G irirusfisgl mijmi Asfs
Hnnimisin Hnnimisia gnnimisin - Ennimisih Hnnimisin HnniMisia HniMiia
2016
[SnjRIAELATIR
anGIMAzniG 6,256,945 6,256,945
fUHAIST BsEAnmu 85,437,721 85,437,721
fuBR g St mithAmAs]
neeni Sujficans
UIENIRIH I 43,751,265 35,000,000 37,000,000 115,751,265
RANAIS SHUNU RIS HAGNS 8,295,212 9,163,439 36,572,328 50,378,179 243,166,515 347,575,673
1§ njeuAyIgi g 1,873,213 562,163 2,435,376
139,357,411 44,163,439 73,572,328 50,378,179 243,166,515 6,819,108 557,456,980
SnnsiimiG
[MAUIRIU A B 8
{fzans vlimigmH (114,000,000)  (53,026,250)  (61,000,000) (3,341,234) (231,367,484)
mauNivHASNS (25,774,383)  (41,620,107)  (115,474,609) (22,963,381) (91,439,041)  (297,271,521)
N g (1,890,603) (3,682,346)  (5,572,949)
(141,664,986)  (94,646,357)  (176,474,609) (22,963,381) (98,462,621) (534,211,954)
AIAH{MAIMARG
MM AL IHIEA (2,307,575)  (50,482,918)  (102,902,281) 27,414,798 243,166,515  (91,643,513) 23,245,026
suByuEnmean)u (9,315,680) (203,799,540)  (415,416,508) 110,673,539 981,663,221 (369,964,862) 93,840,170
g 244 migipEpavimwsigimn - ijsanidjmuiabds



25. mijpUjARMSAWG (7)
25.2 imSAusSH}i (7)
(@)  UNSAWH{MMITMA (7)
isus
1z 1312 31212 1-5 5 irrsfisgl mijmi ASfiS
Hnnimisin Hnnimisin HnimiEia - fnnimisia Hnnimisia HniMiEia Hnnimisia
2015
[SnjRIAELATIR
pGmARRTE 3,805,590 3,805,590
fUHRIST BEmIAnm 56,874,305 56,874,305
raB g St mithA{mAs
neeni Sujficans
UIENIRIH I 18,495,806 46,000,000 26,000,000 90,495,806
RANAIS SHUNU RIS HAGNS 5,180,759 9,382,132 40,053,420 32,742,559 251,263,715 338,622,585
1§ NjeuAYIg g 14,543,478 19,386 87,810 75,600 79,352 14,805,626
95,094,348 55,382,132 66,072,806 32,830,369 251,339,315 3,884,942 504,603,912
snnnsiiia
[MAUIiv e nsmi 8
{f:ans vlimigmH g (164,726,266) (44,000,000) (51,000,000) (2,813,061)  (262,539,327)
mAvNIUHASNS (17,542,571)  (50,196,837)  (93,373,804)  (752,510) (54,333,783)  (216,199,505)
NI g (3,207,080) (2,410,613) (5,617,693)
(185,475,917)  (94,196,837) (144,373,804) (752,510) (59,557,457)  (484,356,525)
AIAH{MMIMARG
timaganEIEia (90,381,569)  (38,814,705) (78,300,998) 32,077,859 251,339,315  (55,672,515) 20,247,387
suByuShmeanu (366,045,355)  (157,199,555) (317,119,042) 129,915,329 1,017,924,226 (225,473,686) 82,001,917
e s oo § dagisam ImumInAiig 2016 ¢ 245
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25.3 IMSAWANGMATLS{RI
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AU)iaNG{MABS 8¢ aij8 (Non-derivative cash flow)
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25. mijAujpUMSAWIG (7)

25.3 IMSAWANGIMATL{RIG (7)

(@) uiantimass8§ayis (Non-derivative cash flow) (5)

1z 13i2 31212 1-5 5 irrsfisg RIS
Hnnimisin HnNiMiLin HnniniLia Hnnimisin HNiMiLin HnniniLia
2016
NG
[MAUIIU TGS

Snifzansviiminmng

(117,360,538)

(53,165,617)

(61,742,647)

(232,268,802)

[mAvIiuAHASNS (117,280,607)  (41,915,534) (118,502,094)  (24,727,675) (302,425,910)
BN (5,572,949) (5,572,949)
(240,214,094)  (95,081,151) (180,244,741)  (24,727,675) (540,267,661)
[SNjAIRYLIMIR A 150,976,415 53,595,665 110,924,596 170,457,040 281,166,234 767,119,950
AHARTIGIANL{RIUAS (89,237,679)  (41,485,486)  (69,320,145)  145729,365 281,166,234 226,852,289
suByruShmenu (360,252,510)  (167,476,907) (279,845,425) 588,309,446 1,135,068,087 915,802,691
2015
NG
[MAUIIUATE I
Shifzansuiiminmng (167,726,534)  (44,142,147)  (51,409,308) (263,277,989)
[MAUINIUAHASNS (71,804,833)  (50,483,333)  (95,992,979) (786,063) (219,067,208)
Ganmumgi g (5,617,693) (5,617,693)
(245,149,060)  (94,625,480) (147,402,287) (786,063) (487,962,890)
[SNjRIRYIMIRAIY 101,449,404 60,044,844 83,937,240 92,007,126 272,084,379 609,522,993
AHARNG{IANW{RIUAS (143,699,656)  (34,580,636)  (63,465,047) 91,221,063 272,084,379 121,560,103
EEENTN AT (581,983,608) (140,051,576) (257,033,442)  369,445304 101,941,735 492,318,413
e s oo § dagisam ImumInAiig 2016 §iti: 247
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25. mijpUjARMSAWG (7)
25.5 nigjfibisgnjany Sutnnudimia (a)
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(v) {gnjeuny Sadanmuuliminimhg

o =0

atgmnaisignjruny Sudanruuininmmhs pinsugathwsalyUIMAINUSIATY BTN WA
annfFius:Sswmsalygliuuuthanigieimunim §ypine 1
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- mimisgmai s migumivgSigmamting ilyje I MIMGUSEUEUBINGSEN  MAFSA ShdrmAnhg

firumaifgfansmi §

- appyunsiivgsthulilyjagaumindignting

AmuAEiGEaIMImAnEginucsints () ipuidvgsuyuien () MpyuSRMUNgIURIENMILINILIEAMATE)
g Sty 9| HUJUTE 821 () HYINEMEHSMANESMA SNHGM AN G{M AT

st 5 s § dagisem smwminfitfigia 2016 $ii: 249



nnn

BT AMGE

25-

9ﬁ:250

iy §31fer gi2016

[ e n |
—_—

M WMINAWImIG

mijAupUMSAWIG (7)
25.6 mijpujniniduss (a)
MNRNNIMYIS: WRUAT U MAIIYSSMEGNUITAIERMI ¢
2016 2015
HnNiiEin méij Gnninisia msiijns
iilugsmagl
ifues 67,000,000 270,479,000 67,000,000 271,350,000
Sinminnen 17,446,669 70,432,203 10,749,262 43,534,511
sAs 8 jASAYHID (295,308) (1,192,158) (353,150) (1,430,258)
s ANsIFlaiAnN:ALEAY i (143,938) (582,949)
84,151,361 339,719,045 77,252,174 312,871,304
iilugsmng2 (idugstinmuigs)
f{jbm arisseIsl (1 ( °/o) 3,447,304 13,916,766 3,359,494 13,605,951
HAs MIGuEItugsghnsIms
Sufcansuliminmig (25,000) (100,925) (25,000) (101,250)
87,573,665 353,534,886 80,586,668 326,376,005
BRAMINAISAYIMSIBOPMaINe teds  gl2ote  ajfrilvesgiul)  Hujuind

o
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